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YOUTH EMPLOYMENT UNDER TITLE II OF THE
JOB TRAINING PARTNERSHIP ACT

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 2, 1988

U.S. SENATE,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON EMPLOYMENT AND PRODUCTIVITY,
CoMMITTEE ON LABOR AND HUMAN RESOURCES,
Washington, DC.

The subcommittee convened, pursuant to notice, at 9:35 am,, in
room SD-430, Dirksen Senate Office Building, Senator Barbara A.
Mikulski, presiding.

Present: Senators Mikulski, Metzenbaum, and Specter.

Also Present: Senator Sarbanes.

OPENING STATEMENT OF SENATOR MIKULSKI

Senator MikULsK1. Good morning. I would like to open officially
the hearing of the Subcommittee on Employment and Productivity
on the Youth Employment Services Act. We have many distin-
guished witnesses who I know are eager to testify, and I know that
we have been very fortunate to have our own new Mayor from Bal-
timore, Mayor Kurt Schmoke, who is here to be introduced by our
senior Senator from Maryland.

There will be other Senators and Representatives joining us, kat
I did want to open the hearing because I know that Senator Sar-
banes needs to be over at hearings on the INF Treaty, and Mayor
Schmoke has his own full agenda.

I note coming into the room is also my colleague, Congr2ssman
Kweisi Mfume, the chief sponsor of the bill in the House. The Com-
mittee welcomes you, Congressman Mfume, and also my very goog
friend and sponsor of the bill, Senator Metzenbaum.

As we begin today’s hearings, I think we all realize that we face
a serious problem—the growing number of unskilled, unemployed
young people who are at risk of becoming a permanent, unemploy-
able under class in our society. This is a compelling problem with
no simple solution.

In preparing ourselves for the needs of the work force in the year
2000, we have to get the jobs ready for the kids, and the kids ready
for the jobs. We cannot allow an entire part of the population to
drop out of the employment picture and ultimately out of our socie-
tv.

Today, the unemployment rate for inner city kids is greater than
40 percent. Functional illiteracy among this population is greater
than 50 percent. Volunteerism cannot solve these problems alone,
but certainly public and private partnerships can.
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Without some efforts on our part, many of our young people will
not be able to participate in the work force of the year 2000,

We are going to be analyzing the Metzenbaum legislation today,
£nd we are going to be listening to ideas and solutions from very
distinguished witnesses.

As we look at the people who are testifying, even sitting at this
table here, now, we come to the United States Senate under histor-
ic situations. Some of us came to this country in slavery. Some of
us came to this country in steerage. All of us are sitting at this
table because for 100 years, America provided us with opportuni-
ty—often hard-earned and more often, hard-fought. But opportuni-
ty was there.

It is my concern that as we move now to the 21st century, oppor-
tunities will be shrinking; opportunities in which hard work and
individual initiative will be thwarted because there is no system to
support the kid with the special need.

America has special needs. It has a special need to be competi-
tive in the year 2000. And our special needs can be met if we get
hoid of our kids and make sure that they have a future.

Having said that, I know that we will be looking at whether we
should strengthen existing programs, shake up the current admin-
istration of the programs; or whether we need new structures and
new programs.

I look forward to the testimony on this very vital issue, and I
want to turn to the architect of the program that we are looking at
today, the Youth Employment Service Act, my very good friend
and my very good colleague, Senator Metzenbaum.

We know that he was delayed because of a special errand of
mercy.

OPENING STATEMENT OF SENATOR METZENBAUM

Senator METzENBAUM. Thank you.

I want to say that this body just grew in such stature when the
lady to my left became a Member of our group. She has made such
an impact and is such a dynamic human being that I think without
exception on both sides of the aisle—those on the other side have
tremendous respect for her in one manner, knowing how tough and
how effective she can be, and we on our side of the aisle not only
have greater respect for her, but have tremendous affection and
warmth. She has made her mark in a short period of time, and I
am so pleased she is chairing this hearing,

With respect to this piece of legislation, let me say that I do noe
think anyth'ng has bothered me as much as having some young
person, quite often a black young person, come up to me on the
streets of Ohio—I remember a specific instance in Dayton; I re-
member another instance in Cincianati. A young person comes up
and ‘)s'e’lys, “What are you going to do about helping me get a job,
man/

And I say to him, “I am going to try to help you. Youn can count
on me. I am going to try to help you”’—and knowing in my mind
that I was not certain how I could do that.
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Even today as I sit before you and offer this legislation, I am not
going to claim that it is a panacea, that passing this bill will solve
the problem. It won't.

The problem is as great as any challenge facing America. Every-
body talks about the number one problem being balancing the
budget. I remember years ago when I was a business person and
our cities were being burned down—burned down in Watts and in
Hough and in Detroit and in New Jersey. And there was a fear in
the establishment, and the business community and the labor com-
munity and the government community all came together here at
the Sheraton to form The Urban Coalition.

I was one of those brought in, and I remember turning to the
(rin%n on my left and saying, “Where are you from, and vhat do you

0.,,

“I am the Chairman of the Board of Connecticut General.”

And I saw up in front, Henry Ford was participating, and Walter
Reuther was participating—and the power structure of America
was there and had a concern because cities were being burned
down.

And then there became a kind of kinetic effecl to do something
about it, to see that we do something about these young pecple.
Well, we did something for a while, and then it has sort of just
trailed off, and the problem of unemployment of young people has
increased.

Our President came to our comrunity the other day and talked
about the fact that youth unemployment, black unemployment, un-
employment generally has improved. He said that black employ-
mert in this country had increased 26 percent between the years
1982 and 1987. That just is not true; it just is not true. And certain-
ly, the problem has been exacerbated as far as the young people of
this country are concerned.

The Youth Employment Services Program proposal is to try
some means, some mcthods, some efforts, to try tv have an impact
on this problem, to explore the issue, to dc it with the business
community and government and labor, all together. And I think we
owe no less to ourselves, to begin with, but more particularly to the
young people of this country, to give them a chance to participate.

I just want to say how pleased I am to see that paragon of virtue,
unquestionably, if you had to talk about the three or four most re-
spected Members of the Senate, you would have to include Paul
Sarbanes’ name in that group. He commands that respect for his
integrity and his determination and his chara.ter above the flock. I
am pleased to see he is here, testifying; I am also pleased to see the
Mayor here, and my very good friend from Cleveland, Senator M-
chael White.

I am sorry I took so long, Madam Chairman, but I feel very
strongly about this legislation.

[The full text of Senator Metzenbaum's statement and a state-
ment by Senator Simon follow:)
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OPENING STATEMENT FOR FEBRUARY 2, 1988 HEARING

TODAY'S HEARING ON Tif YOUTH EMPLOYMENT SERVICES ACT--THE "YES
ACT"-~ONCB AGAIN FORCRS US TO CONFRONT A PROBLEM THAT IS AS
DIPPICULT TO SOLVE AS ANY ISSUE PACING THE CONGRESS: THE TRAGEDY
OF YOUNG PEOPLE WASTING THBIR LIVBS-WIPHOUT-SKILLS, .WITHOUT JOBS
AND WITHOUT OPPORTUNITIES. IN RECENT YEARS THIS PROBLEN HAS
REACHED EPIDEMIC PROPORTIONS, ESPECIALLY AMONG MINORITY YOUNG
PEOPLE IR OUR URBAN CENTERS.

I WANT TO COMMEND THE SENATOR FROM MARYLAND FOR CHAIRING THIS
HEARING. SHE HAS BEEN A TIRELESS CHAMPICN FOR PROPLE IN NEED IN
OUR SOCIETY. I AM PROUD THAT SHE IS JOINING MY EPFORT TO GET THESE
YOUNG PEOPLE OFF THE STREETS AND INTO THE WORKPLACE.

A YEAR AGO, I CHAIRED A LABOR SUBCOMMITTEE HEARING ON THE EXTENT
OF THIS PROBLEM. FIVE TEENAGERS FROM OHIO TESTIFIED ABOUT THEIR
DREAMS. THEY TALKED ABOUT BECOMING DPOCTORS AND BUILDERS; ABOUT
RAISING A FAMILY IN A NICE HOMZ, AND ABOUT GIVIL.G SOMETHING BACK
TO THE COMMUNITY. BUT THEY ALSO TALKED ABOUT BEING ABANDONED BY
PARENTS, PORCED TO SURVIVE BY STEALING AND SELLING DRUGS, LIVING
IN CARS, AND ALWAYS BEING TOLD "NO" WHEN THEY LOOKED FOR A JUB. A
16-YEAR OLD PROM CINCINNATI SUMMED UP HIS WAY OF THINKING:

“I CAN'T SEE PIVE YBARS FROM NOW, I CAN'T SEE TWO YEARS. TIE
ONLY THING I LIVE FOR IS TOMORROW. I LIVE ONE DAY AT A TIME."

THAT IS A SAD AND DISTURBING STATEMENT FROM A 16-YEAR OLD
YOUNGSTER WHO HAS A FULL LIFE AHEAD OF HIM.

THE "YES ACT" IS AN ATTEMPT TO RESTORE HOPE FOR THESE YOUNG
PEOPLE. LET ME MAKE THIS CLEAR, THE "YES ACT" BY ITSELP WILL NOT
SOLVE THE PROBLEM BUT IT IS A NECESSARY STEP IN THE RIGHT
DIRECTION. EQUALLY CLEAR IS THAT THE PEDERAL GOVERNMENT CANKROT
SOLVE THE PROBLEM ALONE, BUT THERE MUST BE A FEDERAJX ROLE IN THIS
EFFORT. WE MUST HAVE TIIE ACTIVE PARTICIPATION OF ALL MEMBERS OF
OUR COMMUNITY--GOVERNMENT, INDUSTRY, LABOR, AND COMMUNITY GROUPS.

HELPING THESE YOUNG PEOPLE BECOME PRODUCTIVE MEMBERS OF OUR
SOCIETY MAKES SENSZ. RESCUING THESE YOUNG PEOPLE FRUM THE STREETS
IS NOT ONLY MORALLY RIGHT, IT MEETS THE NEEDS OF BUSINESS AND IT
IS PISCALLY RESPONSIBLE. CORPORATIONS ARE DISCOVERING THAT IT IS
INCREASINGLY DIFFICULT TO PIND EDUCATED, LNTRY-LEVEL EMPLOYEES.
FOR EXAMPLE, NEW YORK TELEPHONE HAD TO INTERVIEW 90,000 APPLICANTS
TO FPILL 2,000 JOBS THAT DID NOT REQUIRE A HIGH-SCHOOL DIPLOMA
BECAUSE 84% OF THE APPLICANTS FAILED THE EMPLOYMENT EXAMINATION.
WE CANNOT HOPE TO IMPROVE PRODUCTZv.TY AND REMAIN COMPETITIVE IF A
GROWING PERCENTAGE OF OUl. #OPR FORCE CANNOT EVEN PERFORM THE MOST
BASIC TASKS.

WE MUST ALSO UNDERSTAND THAT DOING NOTHING CUSTS MONEY. ACCORDING
TO A RECENT BUSINESS WEER ARTICLE, BACH YEAR MORE THAN HALF A
MILLION STUDENTS DROP OUT OF HIGH S7HOOL AND ANOTHER 700,000 WHO
GRADUATE ARE *BARELY ABLE TO READ :5BIR OWN DIPLOMAS." 1IN 1985,
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ACCORDING TO THE CHILDRLN’S DEFENSZ PUND, 43% OF BLACK MALE DROP-
OUTS AGE 20 TO 24 HAD NO EMPLOYMENT EXPERIENCE WHATSOEVER.
WITHOUT EARNINGS, PEOPLE TURN TO GOVERNMENT FOR SUPPORT, OR WORSE,
THEY TURN TO CRIME. THUS, THESE SEVERELY DISNDVANTAGED YOUNG
PEOPLE COST SOCIETY BILLIONS OF DOIVARS A YEAR IN WELP 1B COSTS,
CRIME CONTROL AND PEDERAL, TAXES. IF THE “YES ACT" CAN HELP EVEN A
SMALL, PORTION OF THESE YOUNG PEOPLE GET JOBS, IT WILL MORE THAN
PAY POR ITSELF AND WILL SAVE SOCIETY MONEY.

SOME HAVE QUESTIONED WY WE NEED THE "“YES ACT" WHEN WE ALRENDY
JIAVVE THE JOB TRAINING PARTNERSHIP ACT. THZ ANSWER IS SIMPLE--JTPA
DOES NOT ADEQUATELY SERVE THIS HARD-CORE POPULATION. THE NATIONAL
COMMISSION FOR EMPLOYMENT POLICY, A GOVERRMENT COMMISSION

RESPONSIBLE FOR EVALUATING JTPA, RECENTLY REPORTED THAT JTPA
PRAGRAMS ARE PAILING TO REACH THE SEVERELY DISADVANTAGED. AS THE
CuMMISSION CONCLUDED, *SOLUTIONS TO THESE MORE INTRICATE PROBLEMS
WILL REQUIRE VERY INNOVATXVE THINKIRG AND PROBABLY MUCH MORE TIME
ARD MONEY, IF THEY ARE TO SUCCEED."

THAT'S WHAT THE "YES acr" poes. IT PRUVIDES FEDERAL MONEY TO
ENCOURAGE INNOVATIVE THINKING AT THE LOCAL LEVEL TO ATTACK THIS
PROBLEM. THE BILL AUTHORIZES 75 TO 100 PARTNERSHIPS NATIONWIDE
BETWEEN GOVERNMENT, COMMUNRI™Y ORGANIZATIONS AND BUSINESS TO
DEVELOP NEW APPROACHES TO DEALING WITH THESE YOUNG PEOPLE. ERCH
PARTNERSHIP CAN PASHION ITS OWN PROGRAM OUTSIDE THE CURRENY
CONSTRAINTS OF THE JTPA SYSTEM. THE PEDERAL GOVERNMENT WILL
PROVIDE SEED MONEY FOR THESE PARTNERSHIPS. THERE WILL BE FEDERAL
MATCHING PUNDS FOR A BROAD RANGE OF PRIVATE SECTOR CONTRIBUTIONS,
INCLUDING CASH OR IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS, JOB PLEDGES OR MENTOR
COMMITMENTS. IN ADDITION, THERE WILL BE "SUCCESS PAYAENYS" FOR
CONCRETE RESULTS--M BONUS FOR EACH LONG~TERM JOB PLACEMENT OR
RECEIPT OF A HIGH SCHOOL DEGREE. BY COMBINING SEED MONEY,
MATCHING MONEY AND BONUS MONEY, THE "“YES ACT" LEVERAGES PEDERAL
DOLLARS AND PROVIDES INCENTIVES FOR INNOVATION ARD RPPECTLVENESS .

I LOOK PORWARD TO HEARING AND QUESTIONING TODAY 'S WITNESSES. THE
*YES ACT" IS BIPARTISAN LEGISLATION WITH 29 CO-SPONSORS. AFTER
TODAY'S HEARING, I HOPE TO MOVE THE BILL QUICKLY THROUGH THE

COMMITTEE THEN ON TO THE SENATE PLOOR. IT IS TIME POR CONGRESS TO0
“JUST SAY YES" TO THE NEXT GENERATION OF AMERICAN WORKERS.

El{fc 11
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Section by Section Analysis of s, 1731,

THE YouTH EMPLOIMENT SERVICES ACT

SECTION 1

Section 1 lists the title of the bill as the “Youth
Employment Services Act of 1987w

SECTION 2

’
Sectien 2 creates a new Pact H under Title 1v of the
Jol. Training Partnership act by adding sections 491-499 at the
end of current Title 1v.
The new part contains the following provisgio, -

Pindings

Section 491(a) states the congressional findings concerning
the changing nature of the American economy with a widening gap
between the skills necessary for empleyment in the inc:casingly
complex workplace and the minimal skills Phssessed by growing
aumber of young people. fThe findings state that current job
training efforts have not been effective in bridging this gap for
severely disadvantaged yYouth and that the '“\3{ness community, in
Partnership with public agencies ang nonpreg t otganizatjions,
should help provide intensive training services to these young
people.

Purpose

Sectizn 491(b) states that the rarpose of this Act is to
demonstrate the feasibility and cost effectiveness of Providing
empl oyment training and services to severely disadvantagcd youth
through Partnerships between the public vector, nonprofit
organizations and the business community.

Demonscration Programs authorfzed
Section 492 authorizes tho Secretary of Labor to carry out

¢ oloyment opportunity demonstration Programs for severely
disadvantaged y.uth,

Bligible severel disadvantaged outh

céconomically disadvantagec individual age 16-24 who: (1) has
dropred out of school, or has finished schoo) and possesses math
and reading skills below an cighth grade level; (2) has not
Participated in aq education or training Program in the )ast nine
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months; and (3) has had less than 150 hours work experience in
the preceding nine-month period.

Bligible gn:tne:shigs

Section 494 states that to qualily for grants under this
Act the applicant must form an eligible partnership with a public
agency or private nonprofit organization and a business concern

or business orgznization.

Uses of funds

Section 495(a) states the guidelines inder which eligible
partnerships may use funds. The overall guideline is that
partnerships may use funds to provide any services deemed
appropriate to further the successful long-term placements of
participating severely disadvantaged youth.

Section 495 specifically authorizes the following services:
individual assessments of skill levels and support service needs;
intensive basic skills training in combination with vocational
training or work experience; support services enabling a person
to participate in the program; jo% development and placement
services; monitoring and support services of participants for 18
months after the completion of the program, as well as providing
assistance in retaining employment, or assistance in obtaining a
degree from an accredited education program.

Section 495(b) defines the term "intensive basic skills
training" as at least 200 hours of instruction, including
computer-assisted instruction, to improve the reading,
mathematics, writ ng, and langu ge skills of severely
disadva) taged youth.

Allocation zad number of demonstration grants
Section 496(a) requires the Secretary to fund between 75 and

100 partnerships to conduct demonstration projects.

section 496(b) states that the Secretary shall target
service delivery areas (SDAs) most in need of assistance by
considering such factors as the number of severely disadvantaged
youth, the presence of special need populations, the unemployment
rate among severely disadvantaged youth, and the degree to which
severely disadvantaged youth are already being served.

Section 496(c) states that to the extenc practicable, the
Secretary shall assure that at least 25% of the funded
partnerships include the private industry council as a member and
at least 25% of the funded partnerships include a community-based
organization as a member. The Se etary also shall assure
equitable geographical distribut’ a of assistance but 50% of the
partnerships should serve SDAs w-th populations of 500,000 or
more.

[ I
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Partnership Agreements

Section 497(a) requires the Secretary to enter into
3-year agreements with the partnerships funded under this
Act. The agreement must describe the private gector
participation in the partnership as well as the outreach,
training, job development, support services, and other activities
for which assistance is sought. The Secretary must obtain
assurances that the partnership will serve only eligible
"severely disadvantaged youth" as defined by section 493, pay the
hon-Federal cost of the program for 3 years, and inform the local
private industry council of the parthership's activities.

Section 497(b) states that nothing in this part affects the
obligation of the private industry council to serve disadvantaged
youth pursuant to title I1I of the Job Training Partnership Act,

Punding Mechanism

Section 498 establishes three djifferent types of Federal
payments to the partnerships--seed money, rmatching funds and
Success payments. The federal government will pay for 80% of the
pProgram cost with the private sector contributing the remaining
20%. Of the 80% federal share, 30t is earmarked for seed money,
20% is for matching funds, and 30% is reserved for success
payments,

In the first year of the program, the federal government
will provide each partnership with 20% of the 3-year program
costs for seed money. In each of the second and third years of
the program, the federa) government will provide an additional 5%
in seed money. The 20% federal matching funds are available in
the second and third years of the program provided that the
partnership obtains private gector contributions of at least 20t
of the program's cost.

The Secretary shall also pay success payments equal to 15%
of the partnership's cost per participant or $1500, whichever is
less, for each "initial successful placement" sr "extended
successful placement."

An "initial successful placement" is defined as 6 months
full-time employment after completion of the program, or receipt
of a high school diploma or equivalency certificate within §
months after completion of the program.

An "extended successful placement® is defined as 12 months
full-time employment after completion of the program; 6 months
full-time employment (or full time attendance at an accredited
higher learning institution for 6 months) after receipt of a high
school diploma or equivalency; or receipt of a high school
diploma or equivalency within 12 months after completion of the
program,

Section 498(c) states that the Secretary may use any funds
not paid as success payments to provide incentive grants to

o . g 1
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eligible partnerships that are the most effective at completing
extended and initial placements, or provide technical assistance
to partnerships that are least effective at completing these

placements.

Evaluation and report
Section 499(a) states that the Secretary shall conduc. or

provide for an evaluation ¢f the success of the demonstration
programs funded by this Act. The factors to be cons.dered should
include the level of utilization by eligible participants; the
impact and cost effectiveness of providing these services to
severely disaavantaged youth; the impact on specific target
groups; the participation level by the business community; and
the comparative effectiveness of different types of entities
involved in the partnerships.

Section 499(b) states that the Secretary shall prepare and
submit an evaluation report, including recommendations for
legislation, to the Congress nho later than the fourth quarter of
the third fiscal year for which appropriations are made under
this Act.

SECTION 3

Sec. 3(a) of the Jod Training Partnership Act is amended to
include authorization for appropriations of $100 million for
fiscal year 1988 and $150 milljon for fiscal years 1989 and 1990
to carry out provisions of Part H of title IV. The Secretary
shall not be allowed to use more than 10% for administration and

evaluation.

o
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Opening
Statenent of Senator
Paul Simon (D. I1.)
Hearing on S. 17.31, The Youth Enployment
Services Act of 1987

I an pleased to welcous each of the witnesses to the Subconmnfttee
on Enployment and Productivity. I want to coumend Senator
Mikulski for agreeing to chair today's hearing on S. 1731 and
Senator Metzenbaum for his leadership i{n secking solutfons to the
problems of providing unemployed youth with the education and
training they need to galn full-tinme eaploynent at a living wage.

While Title It of the Job Trafining Partnership has been somewhat
successful fpn addressing cthe employnent needs of the so-called
‘hard core' uncaplolyed -- those with the least edvucation and
fewest marketable skills -- it is clear that the current preblen
Ls larger (and growing) cthan the solution.

A critical part of cthe unenployzent proklen among our youth {s
the absence of basic literacy skills among uneaployed youth. The
rising drop-out rates in nany of our 'najorlcy-nlnorlcy' urban
school districts will certainly add to this potentfal human
casualcty 1list. Equally important, fn my view, is the challenge
of adding to the skill levels of those uncaployed and employed to
neet the challenge of tomorrow's work force.

Former Labor Secretary Bill Brock stated the problem clearly --
Anericas’'s cconomy is facing two human resource trend lines - the
supply of unskilles (and often uneducated) labor is going up and
the demand for unskil _ labor is declining. Between now and the
year 2000, employment fp professional and Ranagerfial jobs will
incrase by 5.2 nillion, while operative and laborer positions
grow only 1.3 nillion. Minorities, especfally black Anerfcans
and Uispanics, dominate this pool of unwanted and increasingly
unused labor.

Further, the Department of Education estimates that about 72
zillion - adult Americans over 17 ~ one ouf of every three -
lacks the basic reading and writing skills they need to find
work, and that number is growing by 1 nillion each year. Equally
critical, these young peoplehave ever had a Job and lack good
work hablits such as punctualicy, dependability and appreciation
of producing a quality work product.

Senator Metzenbaum's YES Act takes one approach -- it seeks to
target Title IIA demonstration funds on “"hard-to-serve” vouth and
pay the added cost of serving these young people. S. 1731
targets funding through a formula on certain types of
geographical or governmeutal areas with large concentrations of
eligible young adults, as a co-sponsor of S. 1731, I support the
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need to increasc funding for and target additional resources on
the hard to serve. However, a demonstration progran i{s not
necessary- What is needed is a discretionary grant progra=m which
allows the Secretary of Labor to provide matching grants to SDA's
(service delivery areas) in the evzc:z way outline in S- 1731.
Local government nust paly a lead: role, with the pr “or sector
and connunity-based organizations as key partners. I v not want
to alter the basic voraula or existing performance standards now
to address this critical need. The Subconmittee will hold

. hearings later this session on how well current Title IIA
prograas are serving this population. Formula mofidications
should wait until reauthorization of the basic statute and 2
forthconing report, by the National Conmission on Enployment

Policy.

I look forward to working with Senator Metzenbaum and Senator
Milkuls®$¢ to revise S. 1731 along these lines. The partnership
concept is essential Lf we are to nove the problen of youth
unemploynent.

- LRIC 17
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Senator MikuLskI. Thank you very much, Senator Metzenbaum.
Your remarks were most eloquent.

I think we want the record to show that this hearing is really
being held through the initiative of Senator Paul Simon, its chair,
who, though in Iowa now, campaigning, certainly has his commit-
ment in this issue.

This bill enjoys bicameral support, and we are fortunate today to
have the chief sponsor in the House, Congressman Kweisi Mfume,
one of our colleagues in Maryland.

Congressman, would you iike to say a few opening remarks for
our record, and then we will turn to Senator Sarbanes.

OPENING STATEMENT OF CONGRESSMAN MFUME

Mr. MFUME. Thank you very much, Madam Chair.

Let me, if I might, preface those remarks on a point of personal
privilege and to commend you for convening this hearing, for as-
sembling a fine panel of witnesses, but even more so for being so
supportive as you have been on this legislation and on similar
pieces of legislation that feed so very much into the needs of our
young people in the society and speak to a large extent to how we
go about addressing those needs.

Members of the Subcommittee and others who are here, let me
thank you again for the opportunity to join you this morning in
discussions about the Youth Employment Services Act of 1987.

I would like to commend Senator Metzenbaum for introducing
the legislation and also for allowing me the opportunity to take the
lead on the House side, particularly as a freshman member of that
body, with the introduction of H.R. 367 1, companion legislation.

I believe that everyone here is aware of the challenge that we
face as a Nation today to find a way to curb the terrible waste of
human potential that we all too often know is caused by the Na-
tion’s high dropout rate and by its illiteracy; and for too long, I
think we have used a whole array of excuses to shirk that responsi-
bility. In the process, we have contributed to our Nation’s sinking
competitiveness and rising deficit.

The most basic link to our continued prosperity as a Nation and
leadership as a Nation is, I think, the preparation of our children
to meet the demands of a rapidly changing domestic world market-
place. Qur very national security and our survival depend, then, on
making and on following through with this very real commitment.

There is a desperate need for legislation of this type, obviously,
especially in our cities, where the unemployment rate for young
people exceeds 40 percent, and the rate of functional illiteracy ap-
proaches 50 percent. And every year, more than 700,000 students
drop out of school. That dropout rate exceeds 50 percent in some
cities.

In addition to the lack of employment skills, many of those
young people then are beginning to abandon hope of ever becoming
productive and valued members of their communities.

In my City of Baltimore, there are these kids who turn to drugs
and crime and social dependency and who begin to accept this life
and this notion of a burdensome despair.

1233
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The Youth Employment Services Act in proposing to create,
then, a three-year national demonstration program involving up to
100 private and public partnerships that will provide intensive
training and employment opportunities to unskilled and unem-
ployed young people, will provide us, 1 believe, with the opportuni-
ty to determine which programs will best lead youth to successful
job placement or advancement in education.

And so, this legislation is really designed to reach those who are
most in need of the resources that we have as a Nation, and also to
address more fully th2 problem of youth unemployment.

As the President spoke to all of us of the state of the Union last
week, he described our Nation as “a shining city on the hill.” His
address reminds me of an old Charles Dickens tale, “A Tale of Two
.Cities”. Our President boldly and, I think, inaccurately claimed
that America’s poor climbed out of poverty at the fastest rate in
more than ten years.

The President failed, however, to mention that while the annual
dropout rate may have improved somewhat, more young people,
even those with high school diplomas, are in fact unemployed.

There was no mention about the percentage of poor chiidren and
homelessness; delinquency rates are increasing; single-parent fami-
lies and those sort of households are becoming the norm; infant
mortality continues to rise, and our Nation has the highest rate of
teenage drug use of any industrialized nation in the world.

So then, the prospect of structuring and even more so effectively
delivering education and employment opportunities to young
people is distressing. But equally bleak, and perhaps even more
staggering, are the consequences of failing.

So I believe that if we and others move to provide leadership, the
opportunities to address the problem of at-risk youth we will find
are endless. And I respectfully submit that Congressional leaders
and the President must be prepared to seize this opportunity by
agreeing to enact the Youth Employment Services Act described in
Senate Bill 1731 and House Bill 3671.

So Madam Chair, I conclude my formal remarks. I look forward
to the testimony of our distinguished senior Senator from the State
of Maryland, who I know feels very strongly and passionately
about this legislation, and as we hear also from our Mayor, who
has sojourned here this morning to be on the record in a very real
way as to why we must move as a Nation against this very real
problem that plagues many of our urban cities.

Thank you very much for the opportunity, Madam Chairman,
and I look forward to the testimony.

Senator MikuLskr. Thank you. We are happy to have you, Con-
gressman.

Senator Metzenbauin, we are going to put your official opening
statement in the record in the appropriate place. It has excellent
anecdotes and hard-hitting facts.

Senator MeTZENBAUM. Thank you.

Senator MikuLsk1. Now we would like to turn to our witnesses. 1
would like to acknowledge our senior Senator from Maryland Paul
Sarbanes, a long-time advocate for creating opportunities with par-
ticular attention to young people.

Senator Sarbanes, I know you want to introduce our Mayor.
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NG STATEMENT OF SENATOR SARBANES

S..:ator UARBANES. Madam Chair, I am very pleased to have this
opportunity to come before this Subcommittee, want to thank you
and Senator Metzenbaum for your very strong leadership in this
critical area and also to recognize the extraordinary role which
Congressman Mfume is playing with respect to this legislation on
the House side.

It is a very powerful team Iined up behind a necessary and essen-
tial concept, and I am very hopeful that we are going to be able to
move it through the Congress and into enactment.

I would like to make one diversion Jjust to observe, because both
Senator Metzenbaum and Congressman Mfume talked about the
President’s recitation of employment figures and in your instance,
the improvement in poverty statistics. It is very interesting. I have
been watching that. They invariably take as the baseline for com.
parison when they do that the years 1981 or 1982 when the United
States was in the deepest recession since the 1930s. In other words,
the unemployment rate under the first Reagan Administration
went up to 10.8 percent.

It has only now, in the last few months, gotten back to what it
was before that Administration began. So if you take the deepest
point in terms of lack of employment as your comparison base, ob-
viously, you can show a better record in terms of having come out
of that recession.

It masks, however, the underlying realities which are continued,
serious employment problems, particularly for certain elements in
our society. And as Senator Mikulski and Senator Mctzenbaum
and Congressman Mfume and Mayor Schmoke and Senator White
all know, those of us who walk the streets of our cities know just
how real this problem is. The example which Senator Metzenbaum
cited of young people coming up to him is something that is
common to the experience of all of us, and this legislation is obvi-
ously designed to address that problem.

I am delighted that Mayor Schmoke will be leading off the testi-
mony on behalf of the U.3. Conference of Mayors. We have been
friends for a long time. He is a product of the public school system
of Baltimore City. He went on to Yale and then to Oxford as a
Rhodes Scholar, and then to the Harvard Law School, but it all
began in the City public school system, and we are very proud of
that fact, and I think it is significant in terms of the Tlegislation
that you are considering.

The Mayor, who has been Mayor now for just two months, early
on recognized in his campaign—indeed, it was the theme of his
campaign—to place education at the very top of the priority list.
The education of our young citizens was the cornerstone of that
campaign effort, and he has recognized from the beginning the ne-
cessity of making our young people jobs-ready. ’

Immediately after he was sworn into office on the 8th of Decem-
ber, Mayor Schmoke developed a working group of business lead-
ers, educators and community leaders to focus on the educational
needs of Baltimore’s young people, forming The Greater Baltir. )re
Committee, which is the corporate leadership in our community;
the Private Industry Council; the school system and manpower offi-
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cials, and built the Baltimore's United in Leadership Developmen:t,
which is one of the really unique and outstanding community
movements in the country. They have been given the ‘ask of con-
centrating on what it will take to get students ready to take their
. position in the employment market.

I think we will have an aggressive and creative way te respond
to their needs.

It is our responsibility at the Federal level obviously to develop
an approach which is supportive and serves as a catalyst for such
efforts at the local level. We have seen in recent years the Federal
role diminish with respect to the funding of youth employment op-
portunities. Baltimore today is receiving about one-third the
amount of funds for youth progr.ms that it was receiving in 1981.

This legislation embraces a very important principle, which we

have consistently recognized and acted upon in Baltimore, and that
is the necessity for partnership, public and private, local, State and
Federal. And this legislation reaffirms the necessity of that part-
nership and the role of the Federal government in it.
. The objective of preparing our young people for the job market is
critical—critical—to the future of our country and absolutely es-
sential to the future of our cities. I cannot think of anyone better-
equipped to speak to us this morning about it than Mayor
Schmoke, and I am very pleased to have this opportunity to
present him to the Committee.

Thank you very much, Madam Chair.

Senator MikuLski. Thank you.

Mr. Mayor, we now come to you, and of course, we want to give a
particular welcome to Senator White, the Assistant Minority
Leader of the Ohio Legislature.

Mayor Schmoke, we understand this is your first testimony
before the United States Congress, but the way you are moving, I
know it will not be the last.

We are very happy to hear from you.

STAYEMENT OF HON. KURT SCHMOKE, MAYOR, CITY OF BALTI-
MORE, MD, ON BEHALF OF U.S. CONFERENCE OF MAYORS, AND
HON. MICHAEL R. WHITE, STATE SENATOR, CLEVELAND, OH

Mayor Scumoke. Thank you very much, Senator Mikulski, Sena-
tor Sarbanes. I appreciate the introduction. And Senator Metz-
enbaum, Congressman Mfume, it is very good to be here this morn-
ing. )

I am here not only representing my constituents in Baltimore,
but am very honored and privileged to represent the U.S. Confer-
ence of Mayors.

I first of all want to indicate to the Subcommittee that the U.S.
Conference of Mayors strongly supports the Youth Employment
Services Act, Senate Bill 1731. There are a variety of reasons, both
policy and technical, why the Conference of Mayors supports this
legislation, and I will be brief in outlining some of those reasons.

I hae presented to the Committee a formal statement. I will not
go over all of that, but I do want to digress just for a moment be-
cause Senator Sarbanes indicated I have only been Mayor for a
couple of months, but I bring to this position and to this particular
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bill a kind of unique perspective, 1 guess shared somewhat by Sena-
tor Specter, in that I for four and a half years was the local pros-
ecutor in my city, and then before that, an assistant U.S. attorney.
I recognized from that experience that the most effective crime pre-
vention tools were “:0t more police and prosecutors, but the most
effective crime prevention tools were good education and a good
Jjob, and this particular l.gislation underscores that point and, I be-
lieve, goes at a very tough problem in a way that [ believe offers
promise for a solution in the future.

The Conference of Mayors supports the bill for several reasons.
First of all, it targets a younyg population that needs intensive serv-
ice, that is, the severely disadve.ntaged young people in the age
group 16 to 24,

The bill encourages local innovation and partnerships between
the public and private sector, and it rewards those successful part-
nerships.

The funds, most importantly, are targeted directly from the Fed-
eral government to the areas most in need. We have seen a variety
of circumstances in which money from various Jjob programs was
scattered around, not directly targeted tc those areas in most need,
but we are pleased that this particulpr legislation takes the ap-
proach of targeting the areas of most need.

It is important also for us to underscore the fact that the part-
nership approach does work. All of you have indicated frem your
various experiences the critical need that has developed—that is,
the high rates of unemployment for teenagers in general, for mi-
nority youth in particular. We alsc have unacceptably high rates of
functional illiteracy in our communities, and all of us are con-
cerned about this widening gap between the Jjobs that are available
and will be available in the future and the skills that our young
people possess.

We in Baltimore have tried a variety of innovaiive programs
using funds from the Job Training Partnership Act, and we believe
we have some successful models that can be improved upon by the
passage of this legislation.

We have, for example, developed a commitment from our private
sector, working together with the Department of Education and
others, to provide college opportunities for our graduates and jobs
for our young people, not only those who are gifted and talented,
but those who have been severely disacvantaged.

We have a summer jobs program that also involves a partnership
between the public sector and private sector, using the basic funds
from JTPA.

And we have alternative remedial programs which each year
serve approximately 1,000 dropouts, that 1s, 1,000 young people who
re-enroll in programs that were funded by Federaf'funds, and these
programs provide basic skills remediation, work experience, coun-
seling, and support services.

This particular legislation will target more funds to urban areas
‘0 address critical problems. It will also allow us to expand upon
the programs, because we know that training is not the only
answer. We need an intensive support program of daycare and
counseling, computer-assisted remediation, vocational training, and
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offering some stipends as an incentive to our young people. This
particular legislation would provide for those expanded activities.

There is one area that I should mention of some concern to us as
I have reviewed the legislation at this point. It deals with the fund-
ing formulas.

As I said, we are pleased by the fact that the funds will be tar-
geted to areas of most critical need, but the actual formulas them-
selves at this point seem to be very confusing. And we would hope
that the Subcommittee would address that particular problem.

Senator MFTZENBAUM. Excuse me, Mayor Schmoke. My staff tells
me we have already moved forward to make those changes, and we
think there is merit to your point.

Mayor ScuMokE. Thank you very much, Senator.

Also, there is a section in the bill that would relate to those who
would be entitled to apply for the grants. We know that in a varie-
ty of cities, there are private groups as well as other public agen-
cies that would like to apply for experimental job training pro-
grams. We believe that all grants should be approved either by the
Mayor or the Private Industry Council in a particular area in order
to bring some coordination to the services that are provided and to
improve the delivery of those services.

With that, 1 will simply indicate that I support the recent state-
ments made by the Secretary of the Department of Labor when she
indicated that we should be more innovative and aggressive in our
job training activity. I believe that the Youth Employment Services
Act goes along with that commitment and really shows that the
Federal government is behind these particular programs.

Senator MikuLski. Thank you very much, Mr. Mayor, and your
statement in its entirety will be enf~red into the record.

[The prepared statement of Mayor Schmoke follows:]
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Senatcr Mikulski, and mesbers o. the Suboormittee, I am Kurt Schmoke, Myyor of
Baltimore, and I am here today representing the United States Oonfercnce of Miyors.
I am glad to appear before you and commend you for holding this most impor—
tant hearing. Indeed, this is the first time that I have testified before
Congress since 1 became Mayor of Baltamore, and I can think of no more important
topic to begin with than unesployment among disadvantaged youth. This preblem
is 3 tragedy for those whom it affects and bodes poorly for the future of our
nation. I coomend Scenator Metzenbaum, and the other senators, for sponsoring
Jegislation that would help us 1n the natien's cities to address this serious
problem. I am particularly pleased that Senator dikulskt 1s presiding today
for Senator Simn. I wish to thank both Senators Mikulski aid Sarbanes frem
our o.n city and state for co-sponsoring this legislation.

Be assured that I, along with toe U.S. Conference of Miyors, support the

propoaed Youth Dmployment Scrvices Act. v iike the fact thats

* It is a highly targeted program which aims to serve those who need intensive
service and are not adequately served now by the Job Training Partrership Act,

* it is a .iscreticnary grant program which encrarages local innovaticn ir
program design,

* it presents a challenGe to the public and private scctors to work together,

* it rewards success, and

it provides direct funding frum the fedetal quvernment to local guvernments

and agencies.
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Let me review with you same disturbing national statistics that will enpha-
size why the neod for such legislation s so criticals

*  The teenage unerployment rate was 16.8 percent in Novesber 1987, nearly
three times the national average for all age groups. The official jobless
rate for black teens stood at 34.2 percent. Ve all know that this does not
count those who have beeome discouraged ard ro longer look for employment.

*  More than a third of all teenagers in low-income urban neighborhoods could
not find work in 1986. i.early half of all black youths in such commuirtics
were unerployed.

*  Bvery year across the nation 700,000 students age 14 and older drop cut of
school. The dropout rate for white students is nearly 14 percent, for
blacks 18 percent, for Hispanics 28 percent. When poverty rares are
controlled for, however, black and white drcpout rates are essentially iwden-
tical. Regardless of race, youths from poor families are three to four
times rore likely to drop out of school than those from more affluent house—
holds. Among minority youth in the urban areas, half of the ninth graders

will not reach graduation.

*  Dropouts are 2.5 times more likely to be unexployed than high school gra=
duates. Only one in five low income dropouts warked full-time in 1985.
*  One out of wvery eight 17 year olds in this country is functionally
flliterate. For minorities and the poor, the rates are si1gnificant by higher
— approcching 50 percent for inner city youth,
Although 51 percent of JTPA's eligisle populaticn are high school dropouts, caly
28 percent of JTPA participants (both jouth and odu’ts) are dropouts. Doth the
pressures of JTPA pc.'fomncn standards and inadequate funding levels have

resulted in this population of youth being totally wulerserved.

ERIC s

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:




O

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

ERIC

The high dropout rate, the high rate of functicnal illiteracy and the hign

rate of wnerployment among low income, young pecple today constitute a naticnal
tragedy which will likely become worse in the future. This is more than just a
social issue — it's an economc one. Much has been written lately about the

projected demographic trends and shifting industrial base. These trends suggest

that we will be facing a labor market mismatch of unparalleled proportion. ‘The

emergence of unanswered help wanted signs in the suburban frirges in the midst

of high unexployment in the urban cores gives credence to these projections.

Can this naticn's economy, which will be generating entry level jcbs requiring
increasingly higher levels of basic skills, afford to continue to allow this
alarming nurber of youth to disconnect from the mainstream of the labor force?
Can our metropolitan areas with 23 and 3% unermployment rates and exhausted
labor pools afford to ignore the youth in cur urban cores?

There is so much more that needs to be done; consequently, the legislation,
Senator Metzenbaum and others are sponsoring, is most important. It is aimed at
helping the young people who account for the statistics I Just cited — those
who are pocr, have dropped out of school, are functicnally illiterate, are
unskilled, or are wnerployed. It throws down the gauntlet to the private sec-
tor. And 1t encourages the development of locally-designed public-private part-
nerships to provide trawing ard employment to these young people. Baltimore is
known for 1its strong public/private partnerships. Our private sector stepped to
the forefront to create the Blue Chip-In program when federal budget cuts
slashed job opportunities for disadvantaged youth. We have our Commonwealth

agreement 1n which the private sector 1s committed to developing employment
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and college opportunities for our graduates who perform satisfactorily in
school. We have a strong and active Private Industry Council. I intend to
build cn this foundation and to ask our private sector to do more.

what would a program like this mean to Baltirore? Let me first state that
the job training system in Baltimore has established a reputation both for its
creative nodels for serving at risk youth, as well as for 1its public/private
partierships. Ve fund an alternative high school which allows dropouts to re-
enroll in a non-traditional program of education and work experience. Using
JTPA funds, we also have created a centra.ly located learning center which pro-
vides dropouts with a highly supportive program of computer-assisted instruc-
tion, work experience and cownselirg. We've learned from experience that the
models that work best must include irdividualized assessment, individually paced
remedial instruction, one—on-one counseling, work exposurs, financial support
and transiticn support into the labor market.

We also know that cne important solution 1s prevention. In an effort to
irpact upon the dropout rates, JTPA provades fundirg for our FUTURLS program
which identifies eighth graders whose profile suggest that they are destined to
drop out. This program is designed to provide for a four year program of sup-
port 1ncluding four components: year-round computer-assisted repechation, a
prograg. of character development, work experience, and a staff advocate. Ve
Know from experience that these types of interventicns cin be successful, and we
also know that the existing needs are far greater than the resources currently

available.
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This legislation would give us the opportunity to expand these models; to do
greater outreach, to incorporate day care and other support services and to
engage the private sector in a muxch more meaningful way.

The Conference of Mayors has concerns en funding levels ard allocations. So
often, well intended legislative efforts lose their mpact because of ill-conceived
funding forrulas. Baltimore City, despite its tremendous need, experiences
funding cuts every year because the formula targets funds based en Maryland's
aggregate statistics. It ignores the fact that naticnally tnere are urban areas
suffering in the mdst of statewide prosperity. Our summer funds from 1984
through 1987 dropped from $4.8 millicn to $3.3 million. There reeds to be a
raticnal way of targeting funds to the areas most in need and a way of assuring
relative stability of funding.

Secondly, the funding formula proposed in the legislation seems to be much
zore complex than 1s necessary. The private sector is wary of beccming
entargled 1n bureacratic red tape and confusing regulations. Ve feel that a
straight forward federal/non-federal matching ratio which requires that a cer-
tain porticn of the locai funds be contributed by the private sector would be
much swrpler than the method currently suggested in the legislation. In addi-
tion, we would suggest that the 303 that would be set-aside for bonuses be used
for start-up costs in the first year and be used for program expansion in the
second and third years, raiher than Just to enhance the federal /non-federal
ratio.

In addition, there 1s one administrative requirement that we would add. The
zayor and the Private Industry Council should be mnotified of any applications
made by agencies in his or her city, and sign-off by the mayor and the Private

Industry Council should be required as part of the application process. That
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will help to ensure that any proposed program corploments existing employment
and training efforts. )
Just last week the Secretary of Labor, Ann Dorr McLaughlin, addressed the
mid-winter meeting »f the U.S. Cenference of Mayors. She charged us, the nation's
mayors, to make sure that the citizens of our cities are prepared for the jcbs of
the future. She said: “The extent to which you can work with union, communty,
business and school leadership to provide creative approaches for educating the
coning generation, to narrow that skills gap that we see, you will be building a
base for your city's immediate and future prosperity and for the nation's com~
petitive position abroad.” The Youth Employment Services ict would provide us
with some of the resources we will need to meet the Secretary's charge.

Thank you for the cpportumity to appear before you this morming. I will be

pleased to answer any questions you might have.
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Senator MikuLsk1. Senator White, we are now looking forward to
your testimony, which I notice is quite extensive. Would you care
to summarize it? Your entire statement, including the excellent
statistical documentation, will certainly be included.

But Senator, we welcome you, and we look forward to hearing
your comments.

Mr. WHiTE. Thank you very much, Chairperson Mikulski, and to
my Senator, Senator Howard Metzenbaum, Congressman Mfume,
and also to Mayor Schmoke.

First of all, let me indicate that I consider it to be an honor and
a privilege to come before this Committee today to talk about an
issue which I think speaks to the very roots of America, and that is

" the employment of our young people.

I represent half of the City of Cleveland and several surrounding
eastern suburbs, and while I have not seen the exact young people
that Senator Metzenbaum talks about, I have seen others. I have
talked with parents. I have heard their concerns and their fears
aboult the future in terms of the employability of their young
people.

I would indicate to you that as a State Senator from Cleveland,
we have a very serious problem as it pertains to youth unemploy-
ment. Not only is it a problem in terms of unemployment; it is a
problem in terms of poverty.

I think it is important to note some very important parts of the
bill that we concur in and support. First of all, the fact that the bill
targets the economically disadvantaged and the so-called “hard-to-
place” youth—that is a group that has participated as a whole far
below the national level in terms of employment.

Second of all, an area that we feel is most vital is the fact that it
designs more comprehensive strategies to improve the long-term
employability of the hard-to-place. There have been many reviews
of the JTPA program, and one of the reviews that I have consist-
ently seen is that it lacks the basic support mechanisms necessary
to assure success in the employment arena. These include the re-
medial kinds of work, the assistance with transportation and also
day care services and basic skills training.

We believe that these services are essential adjuncts to employ-
ment training for the hard-to-place, and in Cleveland, there has
been a success story. That success story is Cleveland Works. Cleve-
land Works is a program that has shown consistently over time
that it can identify individuals within our community, primarily
women, primarily from the minority community, and it can,
through a comprehensive program of employment training and
ethic training, deal with their employability for the future.

I think when you talk about the need to employ youth, you must
also not only talk about their skill level, but you must talk about
the ethics that they bring to the table. Strong skills and a poor
wu: Kk ethic will not create a success for that particula: individual.

The conditions specified in this particular bill can in fact work,
as demonstrated by our experience in Cleveland. In Cuyahoga
County, which encompasses a large part of my district, statistics in-
dicate that poverty has increased by 38 percent between the year
1980 and 1987. The number of individuals which that represents is

N
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69,555, even though an additional 43,000 persons moved out of the
county. .

The point to these statistics is very clear, that the problem of
poverty in Cuyahoga County due to the out-migration of manufac-
turing and other out-migration of industry, is very severe. That
kind of unemployment problem will not be solved through a helter-
skelter, patchwork quilt of employment programs.

There are two critical goals that I think are embodied in Cleve-
land Works that I would draw your attention to. First of all, it pro-
vides aid for the AFDC recipients, which helps them break out of
the welfare cycle by training and motivating them to be involved
in a full-time job, and it provides the critical health care benefits
that are necessary.

Second of all, it provides valuable resources for Cleveland em-
ployers in need of hardworking, dependable, trustworthy employ-
ees. Cleveland Works actually operates as the mechanism between
that unemployed individual and the employer by the establishment
of an employer’s bank. To this date, Cleveland Works has found
over 300 graduates jobs in Greater Cleveland. Over 60 percent of
those involved in the program have graduated.

Even more astonishing in Cleveland is the fact that prior to this
program, individuals placed in unsubsidized jobs had been on wel-
fare for an average of over four straight years. As I indicated earli-
er, Cleveland Works primarily deals with the needs of woman and
minorities. Ninety percent of those participating in the program
have been women.

While this program restores an individual's dignity by enabling
that person to participate in the society, there are also governmen-
tal savings. The State of Ohio estimates that it has saved in the
first year of employment over $4,386 due to the fact that that indi-
vidual is no longer on the welfare rolls.

We would draw your attention to two suggestions this morning.
First of all, we believe that there needs to be a provision for a
market analysis of the job opportunities in that area. In the geo-
graphic area to be served, it is important to know what jobs are
a}/ailable and what employers are looking for in the way of em-
ployees.

Second of all, an effort needs to be made to secure job place-
ments which pay an hourly rate that will place the individual
family above the poverty line and which will provide health insur-
ance ber.~fits.

The key to youth employment programs and employment pro-
grams in general has to be to ensure that the person obtains a job
that places him or her above the poverty level and that he or she
will have health benefits. Many individuals that have been inter-
viewed by employment programs have said that the provision or
the lack of provision of health benefits in a particular job setting is
a detriment to them considering full-time employment.

The effects of being economically disadvantaged are cumulative
and result in complex problems. I would draw your attention to the
Minneapolis Business Community Employment Alliance. It is an
organization of business, government, and civic leaders who con-
cluded that the crux of the long-term unemployment problem
stems mainly from a lack of job skills, poor health and other handi-
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caps, and for the hard-to-employ adults, these problems begin
before adulthood.

I think there is a correlation between what Minneapolis has
found and what Mayor Schmoke spoke about a few moments ago in
terms of the needs to focus on the critical problem of education.

In Cleveland, there is a Committee for Economic Development. It
has outlined three important strategies which I think are impor-
tant to outline to you this morning.

First of all, they believe that prevention through early interven-
tion with programs that focus on children from birth to five and on
teelnagers who are most at risk of premature parenthood are essen-
tial,

Second, that restructuring the foundations of education through
chan%es in the structure of staffing, management and financing of
schools is critical.

And third, that the retention and re-entry through programs
that combine employment, health and social services for students
still in school and for dropouts is critical.

is organization draws a parallel between employment and the
need to structure and strengthen the educational environment that
our youth in fact are involved in.

So in closing, let me say that we cannot afford to throw away the
key to our future and future generations. We need to support equal
access to employment, housing, education, health care and child
care as a means of promoting the stability of our families and our
Nation’s economic growth.

Through these measures, we can reclaim the youth we have lost
to tite perils of economic disadvantage. 1 urge you to support
Senate Bill 1731.

Thank you.

Senator MikuLski. Senator Metzenbaum, as the architect of the
bill, we will turn first to you for questions.

Senator METZENBAUM. Thank you very much, Madam Chairman.

Mayor Schmoke, Secretary McLaughlin recently called on the
Nation’s Mayors to develop innovative proegrams to help unskilled
young people get jobs. What do you think the Federal role should
be in this effort to help these young people, and can the Mayors do
it on their own?

Mayor ScHMoKE. Thank you very much, Senator.

I believe that the Secretary was correct in calling upon us to be
more creative and innovative in our approaches, but I think the
most important word to emphasize throughout is “partnership”
and the partnership has to be with the Federal government as well
as local government and our private sector.

There is a very significant role for the Federal government to
play, and I guess the statistics that I should underscore are these,
that over the last six years, we have seen a decline of Federal re-
sources targeted to Baltimore, at least, for youth-specific job train-
ing programs. That decline has been from almost $10 million down
to almost $3 million, and yet the need is still there, and it is still
great.

Also, it is important to understand that for our entire job train-
ing system in Baltimore, ten years ago we had over $100 million
for that system, and today we have less than $11 million. So it will
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take a variety of additional resources, and they must come from
the Federal government.

We have been very creative in the use of existing funds, but even
with a whole system of remedial programs for young people, we
can only serve about 1,000 young people with these services, and
we have approximately 5,000 dropouts in our city alone annually.
So you can see that the gap exists. And if we had additional re-
sources, using our creativity, we could serve this population better.

.So that yes, indeed, the l‘)/]Iayors have a role to play, but the Fed-
eﬁa}l government has a very distinct role to play in this partner-
ship.

Senator MErzENBAUM. Do you feel that the Federal government
is being penny-wise and pound-foolish when it comes to allocation
and support for programs of this kind, in view of the enormous cost
to a community for welfare, for crime control and lost taxes of
young people not being able to get a job—in short, it seems to me
that the Administration program is being obtuse, and it just does
not zero in on the real issue. You save “x” dollars, and you wind
up paying 10, 15, 20 times “x” in the costs that result from the fail-
ure to bring these young people into the mainstream of our eco-
nomic society.

Mayor ScuMoke. Well, Senator, I do believe that prevention is
the key, and I believe that State Senator White has indicated in
the successful programs in Cleveland and the ones that we have in
Baltimore, that if we can get to families and young people early—
the success has been demonstrated through Head Start—if we can
get to them early, we do not have to make the investments in wel-
fare and in prison populations, things of that nature, later on.

So yes indeed, I believe that what we are trying to say is that
there are some Federal programs that have been very successful,
and if we channel our resources along those lines, that we will see
even greater success in the future.

Senator MeTzENBAUM. Thank you very much.

Senator White, first, let me tell you how much I appreciate your
interrupting your own busy schedule to be with us. I know that it
was at some personal inconvenience, but I think that your testimo-
ny is imporiant, not only by reason of your role in the Ohio Senate,
but your role as a leader in the Cleveland community.

r. Waite. Thank you, Senator.

Senator METZENBAUM. The YES Act requires the formation of
partnerships between the public and private sectors. From your ex-
perience in Ohio, in Cleveland, do you think the private sector, par-
ticularly the business community, will respond to this challenge to
help these young people? .

Mr. WHiTE. I do believe first of all, Senator, that the private
sector will respond. But I think it is incumbent initially for the
members of the public sector to outline the vision and the param-
eters upon which they wish the community to move. I think that
the private sector will participate and will give credible and very
important input. But I think it is important—and I would go back
to what Mayor Schmoke has said—for the Mavors of cities to have
an active role in terms of outlining what Mayors and also school
superintendents can do to have an active and thorough involve-
ment in the process of designing the program.
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It is important for the school superintendents to be involved, be-
cause we do-not want to just deal with the youth who is at the end
of the line in terms of employment. We want to look at, I believe,
the problem of bringing that youth along through the educational
system. So I think we need to begin to look at the problem of em-
ployment in a comprehensive way that says what do we need to do
when that young child is in Head Start or kindergarten, and a
process of education, to get them to a point where they are ready
to be employed. And I think that the private sector has to definite-
ly be involved in that process.

Senator METZENBAUIM. Somebody gave me a figure the other day
that if you take the beginning class in the Cleveland school system,
out of 12 students who begin, only one of those students will stay in
sct:\}wo‘l? until the twelfth grade. Have you heard figures to that
effect?

Mr. Waite. Unfortunately, our dropout rate is 49 to 50 percent
in the Cleveland public schools. I would say to you, going back to a
question you asked earlier about the relationshin or the correlation
of crime and other social problems we see, to my way of thinkinﬁ—
and I am too short and uninterested to play sports, but I remember
something on a basketball team called a “pivot man”. A job to me
is the pivot social linchpin, if you will. Many of our problems pivot
off of that—crime, teenage pregnancy, drugs, and all the other
social problems which you have to grapple with in your Senate
comm .ttees every day.

So clearly, it is important to look at the importance of education
and how, by focusing on education and job linkage with young
{J.eople, we can avoid having to pay a muck larger price down the
mne.

Senator METZENBAUM. Thank you very much, Senator White and
Mayor Schmoke, and thank you, Madam Chairman.

Senator MikuLskI. Mayor Schmoke, your mother and I worked as
social workers together more than 20 years ago, and we were work-
ing together when they announced something called the War on
Poverty. Michael Harrington had written books about “The Other
America”. A wonderful President by the name of Lyndon Johnson
launched new programs to help people.

Now, 20 years later, you and I are sitting here, you a Mayor, I
am a_Senator, and really, Senator White, I am sure your experi-
ence is parallel with that.

The Administration and some of its social architects, the Herit-
age Foundation and so on, would say our programs have failed, and
why do we need new ones.

My question to you is do we need another program; will this just
be one more in the alphabet soup where we put legislation out, but
years later, those of us who worked to end goverty did better than
those‘?who we were trying to help poverty? Do you want to com-
ment? .

Mayor ScHMOKE. I think your analysis is correct. We do not need
to just add additional alphabets to the alphabet soup. But this par-
ticular legislation does not do that. It builds on a very important
piece of legislation, the Job Training Partnership Act. And I think
what the Conference of Mayors is saying is that we have a mecha-
nism here that works. It is simply that we have to make certain
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amendments to make it work even better, particularly, and first of
all, in the resource level. The current level is inadequate to do the
job as I have mentioned before.

Secondly, we are concerned because the Job Training Partner-
ship Act sets its targets based on State unemploymr ant statistics
and does not just adequately focus in on areas of need. And as you
know, our State is doing very well on a Statewide basis as far as its
unemployment statistics are concerned, but when you look into the
cities, then you see critical areas of need. And I believe that the
Eouth Employment Services Act will target these funds much

etter.

And certainly, I believe the need is so great that in this instance,
where we have an important and effective tool at our fingertips
that we should employ it.

So, no, we are not adding to the alphabet soup; we are simply
building on our strength.

Senator MikuLsk1. Thank you.

Senator White, do you want to comment on that as well?

Senator WHITE. Senator, I would only say to you that the chal-
lenge is still there. We, at this very moment, are throwing away
one (}>1f the most important resources in our country, and that is our
youth.

I would turn the question around to those who doubt the need
and ask can we afford not to go forward with an importa>t pro-
gram that builds on the foundation of success to provide an opyor-
tunity for our youth.

Both I and Mayor Schmoke are relatively young men, but one
day, we are going to want to put down the gavel, Congressman, and
sit down. And I think while we have an opportunity and scme abil-
ity to make a change in the future of our society, we must do that.

And as I walk Saint Clair, or Hough, or Lorain Avenue, I see
young people in need of leadership. And if we are not the ones to
provide it, then they will be lost. And if we do not find ways to in-
volve them in employment, Senator, they will be in the prisons of
Maryland or the prisons of Ohio or in the prisons of other States of
your colleagues. We cannot afford not to do this.

Senator MikuLsk1. Thank you very much.

Co??gressman Mfume, did you have a question or two for the
panel?

Mr. Mrume. Thank you, Madam Chair.

Mayor Schmoke, on page 5 of your formal testimony, you made
mention of the concern that the Conference of Mayors had with the
funding format, and I was glad to hear Senator Metzenbaum indi-
cate that that had been corrected. But some of that concern grew
out of what was further delineated in the testimony, the fear of the
private sector that they would be perhaps entangled in too much
bureaucratic red tape and could in fact make many of those per-
sons who would have come forth a bit gun-shy.

In your dealings with the Conference of Mayors or in your own
dealings with corporate America or the private secior, are there
some other concerns perhaps that have been articulated by mem-
bers of the private sector that we on this Committee ought to be
sensitive to as we go about groping and trying to put a final shape
and direction to this legislation?
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Mayor Scamoke. Thank you very much, Congressman. I believe
that there are some concerns, and one of the reasons that the Con-
ference of Mayors supports this legislation is that it addresses some
of those concerns.

First of all, those members of the private sector that have par-
ticipated in these partnership programs want flexibility, want inno-
vation or to be allowed to be innovative, and they also want to be
rewarded for success, and to see that a community is not penalized
but in fact is rewarded for its success.

I think that these concerns are being addressed by this particu-
lar legislation, and I am glad to see that you were mindful of that
as it was developed.

Mr. MruME. Senator White, in line with that you had mentioned
also that the public sector has an incumbent »esponsibility to sort
of outline parameters and define the vision that we have in order
to expect, then, some sort of role to develop in the private sector.

Coulc you add to the question and to, perhaps, the response that
I got from the Mayor?

Mr. WHiTE. I happen to believe—and it is certainly open to
debate—~that we who are leaders in the public sector have a re-
sponsibility to articulate a public vision for our community. And I
believe that before we can ask others to make input or to expand
upon that, we must initially outline that vision and make it clear
as to where we perceive us to be at this point, and where we wish
to be in the future; and to say to our potential partners, “Here is
where we want to go; please, help us get there. Let us know what
your vision is. Let us know what your problems are. But at that
poi?(it,”please involve yourselves with us as a partnership to go for-
ward.

I think the needs of the private sector and the needs of the
public sector are not mutually exclusive. For example, two of our
employers, our major employers in Cleveland—one is Sherwin Wil-
liams, which has a paint company with retail outlets. And in a
meeting with their CEO, he has indicated to me that many times,
he will have to go outside of the State of Ohio or outside of the City
of Cleveland to hire paint managers. Likewise, the president of
Ameritrust Bank, Jerry Jarrott, has a remedial program at Ameri-
trust Bank to teach high school graduates how to count money.

These people clearly have a need that speaks to the manner in
which the young people that they bring in at entry-level positions
are prepared. That is a need which frankly is not only their need,
but a challenge for us, because they have to be preparad to assume
that responsibility.

So I would only go back to a point in my testimony by saying to
you that we must articulate the vision, but we must involve people
from not only the public sector but the private sector to make that
vision a reality.

Mr. MrUME. You also made u point—and I do not have the testi-
mony here in front of me--about market analysis. Can you talk
about how you expect that to be plugged in, either before or after
the implementation of the program in urban areas? That is where 1
need some clarification.

Q- _'}8 3’?
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Mr. WaiITe. The Cleveland Board of Education has long been ac-
cused in their vocational programs of preparing young people for
jobs that were available 10 to 20 years ago.

I think it is :mportant, if we are talking about preparing young
people for the future, that we first identify where those jobs are
going to be in a particular geographic area so that we are training
young people for openings that are going to appear, and that as-
sessment needs to be updated on an ongoing basis. We shouldn’t
just say, well, we have been making widge.~ in Cleveland for 50
years, so there are going to be jobs for widget makers, so we are
going to train widget makers, especially in terms of how the eco-
nomic environment is changing in the country in general, but in
the Northeast and Midwest in particular.

So we need to first ask ourselves where do we believe, based on
our best analysis, the jobs will be 5, 10, 15, 20 years down the pike.
The(? we need to begin to design job programs that fit those future
needs.

I think the worst thing in the world—and we have this problem,
Congressman, in Cleveland—is where young people who want a job,
who want to work, are being prepared to be private security guards
or other positions for which there are very limited needs. They
become frustrated, and they ask, “Why should I go on with educa-
tion?” and they turn off.

Mr. MruME. Thank you.

Thank you, Madam Chair.

Senator MikuLskl. Thank you.

Mr. Mayor, Senator, we thank you for your testimony. The Com-
mittee has no further questions of you at this time. Your testimony
was eloquent, precise, and most helpful.

Mayor Scumoke. Thank you very much for the opportunity to
appear to today.

Mr. WHITE. Thank you very much.

Senator MEeTzENBAUM. Thank you, Senator White, and thank
you, Mayor Schmoke.

Senator Mikutskl. The Committee would now like to move on to
its panel of witnesses, people who have had actual experierce and
gu;)ughts on this. I see that we are moving up the Department of

abor.

We are now going to ask the Honorable Robert S. Jones, Acting
Assistant Secretary for Employment and Training, to come and
give us the administrative views.

Mr. Jones, we welcome you. I know that you are the Acting Sec-
retary. However, the Committee must express some disappoint-
ment at the lateness of your testimony. We have six witnesses for
today’s hearing, including four from out-of-town. By 1:00 yesterday,
we had the submitted written testimony of all the witnesses. Yours
zvrived at 8:30 p.m. You were the closest and had the most re-
sources to develop testimony. So we are a little cranky about that,
and we would like a little brisker pace over there at Labor.

Senator METZENBAUM. I want to say “Amen” to the Chairper-
son’s comment. Time and time again, this Administration thinks
they can be indifferent to the concerns of Congress. We try to do
our homework. And we are not in a position, when you give us
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your statement at 8:30 at night, and we have a hearing at 9:30 the
next morning, to give it the attention which we want to give it.

But what bothers me as the author of this bill is that maybe it
indicates a kind of indifference, and this is on the back burner over
at the Labor Department, and that isa particular disappointment
to me, because I had hoped that under Mrs. McLaughlin, we were
going to have an aggressive, cooperative kind of working relation-
ship ‘}\lrhere we might do something worthwhile within the next 11
months.

Mr. JonEs. Let me say that I accept both comments quite gra-
ciously and understand your impatience. And let me say to you,
Senator, that it is not on the back burner; it is a very high priority
with us and an issue of great concern, and we appreciate your in-
terest in it. We have a great deal of interest in it. It is a high prior-
ity on the Secretary’s agenda and the Department’s agenda.

I understand your concerns about the lateness of the testimony.
We will continue to struggle to meet your time lines at every op-
portunity.

Senator MikuLskl. Let’s hear what you have to say.

STATEMENTS OF HON. ROBERT S.T. JONES, ACTING ASSISTANT
SECRETARY FOR EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING, U.S. DEPART-
MENT OF LABOR, WASHINGTON, DC, ACCOMPANIED BY PATRI-
CIA McNEIL, ADMINISTRATOR, OFFICE OF STRATEGIC PLAN-
NING AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT

Mr. Jones. We are pleased to have the opportunity, as I indicat-
ed, to be here and to join in this conversation. I have the state-
ment; we will submit it, and if I may, I will simply summarize
some of the points that are in there in the interest of time.

Senator MikULsk1. Mr. Jones, your statement in its entirety will
be entered into the record.

Senator METzZENBAUM. Would you like to introduce the lady who
is accompanying you?

Mr. Jones. Excuse me. Along with me today is Patricia McNeil,
the Administrator of our Office of Strategic Planning and Policy
Development.

Let me begin by once again commendinf Senator Metzenbaum
and the other Senators who have supported this bill in addressing
employment problems of severely disadvantaged youth. We think
this is an extremely important issue, and many of the things that
are put forth in this legislation are significant contributions to.the
dialogue that is to develop.

Let me point out a few words first about the problem of youth
unemployment generally. Although unemployment is transitory in
nature for most youth, for .a small segment, unemployment is
chronic. This segment of youth is disproportionately minority and
lives in poverty areas, generally.

We have been studying this unemployment. problem for years, as
several of you have indicated, and a number of explanations have
been offered for why this small segment of chronicall unemployed
youth heve such trouble getting and holding a job. Some of these
explanations relate to labor demand and why employers do or don’t
hire young people: Other explanations of the problem relate to the
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attributes of the at-risk youth themselves. Many of these youth
lack education and other skills necessary for basic entry-level jcbs.

The employment outlook for at-risk youth may in fact be improv-
ing. Over the next 13 years, the labor force will continue to grow
more slowly than at any time since the 1980s. However, growing
numbers of work force entrants are likely to be minority and from
single-parent families or poor—those youth who traditionally have
the most difficulty in getting into the job situation.

We face both a challenge and an opportunity ia dealing with at-
risk youth. We need to focus on this problem because, as an econo-
my, we need these new workers, not just because it is a social issue,
but because of the economic support system that is ner essary.

What are we doing about the problem? Currently, there are a
number of Federal programs in existence. In the Department of
Labor, Title II-A of the Job Training Partnership Act served about
490,000 economically disadvantaged youth in the * w. ver
100,000 were served by the Job Corps in the same Syot@in. 1nw Jb
Training Partnership Summer Youth Program served 631,400
young people this past summer. Educetion Department programs
including Chapter I for educationally disadvantaged children, serve
a large percentage of at-risk youth. The two largest HHS programs
serving at-risk youth are the Community Services Block Grant and
Social Services Block Grant. Together, these programs provide bil-
lions of dollars of resources that can be directed and targeted to at-
risk youth. States and localities, of course, cza also make invest-
ments in this issue.

For some'time, the Department has been concerned that our pro-
grams were not reaching enough of the hardes*-to-serve youth, par-
ticularly those who have dropped out of school and are unemployed
or unemployable. In response to this concern, we have undertaken
a number of initiatives to refocus our programs on this group.

In early 1987, the Administration proposed an AFDC Youth In.ti-
ative to provide a comprehensive year-round program of intensive
services to youth on welfare and welfare families.

The Department is currently in the process of revising JTPA per-
formance standards. We expect the new standards will encourage
more long-range, intensive interventions to meet the nzeds of at-
risk youth.

We are working with Brandeis Univursity to develop guides and
training for the JTPA system to improve local programs’ capacity
for serving at-risk youth, and to share information on successful
program models.

The Department is providing planning guidance to the States
that emphasizes the increasing services needed for at-risk youth. It
encourages the development of enriched, long-term program inter-
vention and encourages beiter JTPA coordination.

To acquire a better understanding of the approaches and models
or sets of services that are effective, the Department has undertak-
en an ambitious research and demonstration agenda. Let me brief-
Iy raention a couple of these—and I would be happy to provide a
more detailed list for the record that the Committee might want to
look through.

{Information supplied follows:]
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U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING ADMINISTRATION

EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING PROJECTS FOR YOUTH
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EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING PROJECTS FOR YOUTH

Workforce 2000 projections call for a substantial increase in
employment opportunities for young adults 16-21 while noting a
decrease in the number of youth that will be adequately prepared
to enter the labor market. Presently, a substantial proportion
of youth, 16-19 years old, are "at-risk™ of not being prepared to
me=ke the trancition into productive employment because of the
problems associated with this group; i.e., illiteracy, high
dropout rates, teenage preghancy, runaways and homelessness,
substance abuse, crime, chronic unemployment, etc. Consequently,
the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training
Administration, has identified this group as one having
specialized needs requiring specialized services and has taken
measures to provide comprehensive and innovative solutions to
these problems in assisting these youths to achieve social and
aconomic independence.

The Department has funded, independently and jointly (with the
pepartment of Health and Human Services), a number of research
and demonstration efforts targeted at the following groups:

o In-school, dropout prone youth

o Recent school dropouts and out-of-school
youth

o Homeless, runaways and foster care youth

o Teen parents

o pevelopmentally disabled youth

These projects provide comprehensive employment and training
services, education and other support services, promote the
conduct of activities that seek the adoption of state
legislative guarantees for meeting the educational and related
needs of at-risk youth and encourage the development of models
that more cost-effectively serve youth by :reating better
linkages between human services and training and employment
services at the State and local levels. DOL has provided
approximately $8.5 million in funiing for these projects.

To identify ways to increase program outcomes and decrease costs,
ETA undertook Job Corps II, a series of pilot and demonstration
and linkage projects gesxgned to test innovative training
techniques and management approaches to disadvantaged youth. The
majority of these projects will be implemented at existing Job
Corps Centers and will actively seek the participation of State
and local governments, the private sector, education, health and
human services and other interested parties, through linkage
agreements, in the conduct of these projects.
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Youth 2000 State Grants, jointly funded by DOL and the

Department of Health and Human Services, was awarded to governors
and departments of State governments designated by the governors
to coordinate youth issues and promote greater involvement by
private sector organizations and State and local governments to
mobilize resources and develop local solutions to youth problems
based on community needs. DOL's investment to date is $500,000.

The following attachment categorizes and describes our youth
projects.

Attachment
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IN-SCHOOL YOUTH

Cities In Schools
(DOL/HHS/DOJ)

School Officers

Project
(DOL/HHS)

Elder Sports
Management §

& Instructional
Institute

Indian Center, Inc.
(DOL/HHS)

ERIC
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RESEARCH AND DEMONSTRATIOR PROJECTS

Encourages local public/private
support to make available a
variety of hecalth, social,
basic education and training
employment services within the
school setting

Council of Chief State Award of 10 state action grants

for planning, promoting & implementing
services/programs that seek state
legislative guarantees for at-risk
children & youth

Eisenhower Foundation Provides four private dollars to

every Federal dollar to provide
remediation and employment
opportunities for homeless youth,
juvenile delinquents, abused

youth and drug users in residential
and non-residential settings in
five inner-city neighborhoods

Promotes an awareness within

the disadvantaged, minority

youth population of a broad

range of employment opportunities
in the business of sports
activities

Adapts Junior Achievement Program

to Native American student needs;
career counseling curriculum
revision, 15 weeks business/economic
instruction, entrepeneurial
experience marketing culturally
related projects designed by
students .

44

$800,000

$550,000

$100,000

$365,000

$ 27,863

e e e =




39

RESEARCH AND DEMONSTRATION

IN-SCHOOL YOUTH

JTPA Education Project
National Council of
La Raza

The Juvenile Awareness
Program
(DOL/HHS)

Manchester YwCA
Ploject
(DOL/HHS)

National Alliance of
Business

Oklahomans For
Indian Opportunity
(DOL/HHS)

The C-eida Tribe
of Indians
( DOL/HHS)

Pathways For Youth
Project
(DOL/HHS)

Increases the effectiveness of
Hispanic focused employment &
training programs by developing

& implementing inuovative ed.
models 2t 10 Hispanic community-
based programs; provides basic
literacy skills & improve academic
skills, encourages high-risk
Hispanic youth to 5tay in school,
helps dropouts return to school/
obtain GED and encourages parental
participation & support

$207,200

Ccmprehensive service center
attempt to reduce serious crime

and gang violence by working with
gang members to increase educational
and employment opportunities

$2v0,000

Provides remediation and counseling
to severely at-risk youth; corporate
rentors provide encouragement for
staying in schoel and aid in finding
part-time employment

$ 75,000

Establishes agreements between public
school system/private sector/PIC in
seven cities to decrease truancy

and reduce dropout rates through
increasing summer job slots and
hiring high school graduates from the
projects

$100,000

In cooperation with Absentee Shawnee
Tribe, offers classroom/business
development training to Native
Anerican students in three Oklahoma
high schools

$ 53,193

Uses adult mentors to provide remedial
education and employment opportunities
to Tribal youth in an effort to combat
high dropout rates, substance abuse
and suicide rates

$ 30,000

Sponsors special counseling, remedial
education and vocational exploration
for potential dropouts for whom the
police athletic club with develop

$ 50,000
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RESEARCH AND DEMONSTRATION

IN-SCHONL YOUTH

Supmer Training and Provides basic skills remediation $750,000
Education Program to youth, during summer months, to
(STEP) prevent dropouts and teen pregnancy
Public Private Ventures
west Philadelphia Establishes a community-based $70,750
Partnership Youth youth employment program which
Employment & Training includes pre-apprenticeship
(DOL/Bureau of Labor training, remedial ed., job
Management Relations counseling & placement activities
& Cooperative Programs) for inner-city youth & simultaneously
integrating these activities into
neighborhood school curriculum
Young Astronaut Promotes careers in science and $187,500
Council Career technology for economically
Explortion Program disadvantaged youth & develops
and disseminates education &
career exploration materials to
Young Astronaut chapters
RECENT SCHOOL DROPOUTS AND OUT-OF~SCHOOL YOUTH
Disconnected Youth Provides high intensity motivaticnal $1,034,41:
Program and remediation support, referral to
700001 Ltd. job training & followup counseling
to youth, ages 16-21
Franchising The Collaborates with public/private $175,000
Operation Success Model sector in providing intensive
(DOL/HHS) employability development for
homeless youth in city shelters
and youth in foster care
Job Conps Computer Evaluate the effectiveness of $430,000
Assisted Instruction of computarized literacy training
Shugoll Research for Job Corps enrollee
JOBSTART Provides intensive remediation $333,000

Manpower Research
Developrent Corporation

in job training/basic skills to
dropout youth, in 14 states, who
read below the 8th grade level

ERIC 46 .
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RESEARCH AND DEMONSTRATION

RECENT SCHOOL DROPOUTS AND OUT-OF-SCHOOL YOUTH

*Partnership
Enhancement Grant

* Process Evaluation
of SDA Policies for
Dropouts

Project Pride
{ DOL/HHS)

*Project STAR,
Innovative Policies
for Dropout Prone
Youth and School
Dropouts

Reaching For Education
to End Poverty for
Indian Teens

{DOL/HHS)

Rural Oppor“:unities
Youth Intervention
Rural Opportunities,
Inc.

{ DOL/HHS)

*New Initiatives

O
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Development and testing of 6-8
demonstration projects focused
on youth, especially those at-
risk, or vomen on welfare that
identify innovative methods,
strategies, models and linkages
for addresing needs of these
tar¢et groups

Will provide a process evaluation

of the implementation of Project
Star; will be useful in replicating
the model to a wider JTPA system and
if the pilot project requires
additional evaluation

Promotes self-sufficiency of
daughters of AFDC recipients
providing job behavior coaching
and part-time employment,
contingent on staying in school

Grants awards to five SDA's in
inner city areas, to replicate
Project star, a highly intensive
remedial ed. program aimed at
school dropouts

Uses adult mentors, alternative
education and employability in
continuum of services designed to
promote selfisufficiency among
Indian teens

Provides farmworker ycuth with
academic assistance, labor market
information, support services and
jobs

$1.6
million

$150,000

$150,000

$2 million

$120,000

$110,000
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RECENT SCHOOL DROPOUTS AND OUT-OF-SCHOOL YOUTH

* what works in Youth
Employment Competency

The Youth Improvement
Program
( DOL/HHS)

Youth Services USA,
Inc.

Will review, in-depth, competency $300,000
based systems, assess effectiveness and

the applicability for use with va.ious

subgroups of disadvantaged youth; a

second activity will be the development

of an assessment system to diagnose

an individual's literacy strengths and
weaknesses for diagnostic and prescriptive
purposes

Provides youth of fenders with an $200,000
alternative to incarceration,

leading to ¢ ~gquisition of education

and job skilis, good work habits,and

permanent unsubsidized employment

Increases awareness of JTPA operators $150,000
at State and local levels of military

training resources for employment-

related programs for disadvantaged,

minority youth and adults by providing

TA and program design services in

implementing Job Skills Training §

Employment Program

HOMELESS, RUNAWAY, FOSTER CARE YOUTH

Alasxc Youth and Parent

Foundat ion
(DOL/HHS,

Arizona Call-A-Teen

Youth Resources Project

(DOL/HHS)

Illinois Dept. of
Children & Family
Services
( DOL/HHS)

*New Initiative

O
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Provides skill/interest assessment, $ 8,334
0JT, classroom and in-school training,

tryout ana summer employment for 60

youth in energency shelter or in State

foster caie, il collaboration with

Anchorage JTPA Zrogram

Provides competency-based employment $ 25,000
and independent living skills training,
job counseling & job placement/followup
for 60 foster youth preparing to leave

In conjunction with community-based $ 25,000
youth service agencies and JTPA SDA's,

creates social service/youth employment

service partnership demonstrating

effective coordination. joint Dlanning

and case management for 120 runaway &

homeless youth per Year
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HOMELESS, RUNAWAY AND FOSTER CARE YOUTH

The Judge Baker
Guidance Center
(DOL/HHS)

June Burnette Institute
San Diego State Univ.
(DOL/HHS)

Miami Bridge, Inc.
(DOL/HHS)

Mountain Plains youth
Services
(DOL/HHS)

Oasis Center
Nashville, TN
(DOL/HHS)

Philadelphia Mayor's
Office of Community
Services
{DOL/HHS)

ERIC
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Establishing JTPA/youth agency partner-
ship activities for foster care and home-
less youth in 3 Mass. PIC areas to demonstrate
& document formation of linkages between

PICs & selected youth & expansion of

area training & employment services

$ 2¢ 089

Working with the San Diego PIC, County $ 25,000
Social Services & youth service providers

to develop a cooperative funding strategy.,
implement & evaluate two youth service
employment demonstration projects & hold
conference for dissemination of findings

Working with PIC/South Florida Ed. &
Training Consortium & State Rehab.
Services to serve 120 Dade County
runaway & homeless youth, ages 16 1/2
and older, with ed/employment skills
training & health services

$ 25,000

Linking with Governor's Employment
Forum or PIC & State Dept. of

Human Services to coordinate a wide
range of self-sufficiency service
to prepare 60 youth for JTPA job
skills training programs

$ 24,802

Provides independent living skills;
links with JTPA/Mayor's Employment

& Training Resources Agency to
provide education & employability
services for 35 foster care/homeless
youth per yr. transitioning to
independent living

$ 25,000

Working with DHHS & PIC to provide
120 youth leaving foster care with
job readiness training & work
experience; recruits & trains
foster parents & adult caregivers
to encourage self-sufficiency

$ 25,000
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HOMELESS, RUNAWAY AND FOSTER CARE YOUTH

PIC/Business & Industry
Division of NYC
(DOL/HHS)

Toledo Area PIC
(DOL/HHS)

Youth Network of
Chicago
(DOL/HHS)

TEEN PARENTS

Adolescent Family Life
Projects
(DOL/HHS)

Homeless Single Teen
Parents and Potential
Delinquents

( DOL/HHS}

O

LRIC

Works with homeless youth services
agencies & NYC Human Resources
Administration to provide specialized
staff training for preparing youth to
enter 60 JTPA summer program slots
each yr. & to develop/disseminate
guidance on how to prepare

severely at-risk youth for JTPA
participation

Works with county consortium of
agencies to provide social &
health services, pre-employment
training, OJT or educational
placement for 25 juvenile

of fenders, mentally retarded,
substance abusers or mentally
disturbed youth per year

Community baged agencles,
Chicago PIC, the Children's
Home & Aid Society & State
Dept. of Children & Family
Services provides 100
participants per year with
independent 1living skills
training & JTPA services
leading to placement in
unsubcidized jobs

"

Addition of employability
development component to
six centers which offer
comprehensive education
and employment and training
services to pregnant and
parenting teens

Provides remediation and
employment opportunities
and on=-site child care
at two sites serving
homeless teen parents

$ 25,000

$ 25,000

$ 25,000

$500,000

$100,000
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IEEN PARENTS

A National Demo Project
for Teen Mothers
Manpower Demonstration
Research Corporation
(DOL/HHS)

Teen Parent Center
Self-Sufficiency
Project

Office of Women's
Services

(DOL/HHS)

DEVELOPMENTALLY DISABLED

A five-city ?roject with $100,000
Ford Foundation support
providing comprehensive

service approach including
education, counseling,
Ooccupational skill training,
p2id work experience, day

care services, ctc. to increase
the employability of AFDC
teenage mothers, 17-19 years

of age, who are school dropouts

Provides GED, remedial ed.,
public/private sector work
internships, individual

and group employment counseling
on-site day care services

in an alternative setting

for pregnant and parenting teens

$ 50,000

YOUTH

American Horticultural
Therapy Assocfation
(DOL/HHS)

Boston Colteoe
Division of Special
Education and
Rehabilitation
{DOL/HHS)

bavis County
vtah PIC
(DOL/HHS)

O
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Establishes model services to
enhance effectiveness of
secondary and post-secondary
education and job training
services to facilitate disabled
youths' transition from school
to work

Provides education, pre-employment
and job training services to 60
youth per year for the purposes
of conducting local schools in-
service training, providing
training for Sp. Ed. and Rehab.
students participating in project
replication activities

$ 51,686

Will demonstrate local area network s 33,500
job placement system for facilitating
transition of developmentally

disabled youth from school to work
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Centers As Alternative
High Schools

Child Care .inkag2
Project

Disciplinary Discharge
Center

Ex~ended Training Day

Job Corps/JTPA
Linkages

On-Site Day Care

o
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JOB CORPS II INITIATIVES

pilot centers will establish linkages
with appropriate State local Dept. of
Ed., to serve as alternative high
schools for eligible potential high
school dropouts, providing training
and support services to assigned
students

Job Corps.Centers are developing
linkages with state welfare agencies
for the purpose of enrolling eligible
AFDC welfare mothers into the program;
daycare and other gupport services
are provided under Title XX; Gary

and Guthrie Job Corps Centers are
currently participating in this
project

An existing Job Corps center will
be designated to accept referrals
of youth who would otherwise be
terminated from the program
because¢ of behavior problems;
intensive counseling and support
services will be provided with

an emphasis on completion of
training and job placement

At South Bronx St. Louis JCC,
education classes, vocational
training ¢ support services
will be offered during the
evening hours for non=-
residential enrollees

Job Corps centers will develop
linkages with JTPA for referrals
of youth and programmatic
initiatives

Atlanta & Los Angeles JCC have
established on-site day care
for children of non-residential
enrollees; Pittsburgh JCC is
working on establishment of
on-site day care which will

be subsidized primarily through
AFDC grants

A —
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JOB CORPS II INITIATIVES
Potomac Job Corps Center provides carly childhood
Center, Head Start instruction to preschool aged
Program children of non-residential

enrollces; operated free of
charge by the United Planning

Organization
Urban Nonresidential New Orleans and Philadelphia will
Centers Serve as sites for offering basic

Job Corps program without the
residential support services offered
at other centers; an evaluation

will be conducted to determine the
effectiveness of this approach
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Alaska's Governor's
commission on Children
and Youth

Bringing Down The
Barriers To Opportunity:
Cormonwealth of Mass.

Colorado's Youth 2000
The Competitive Edge

Delaware Youth 2000

Iowa Youth 2000
Project

Local Integrated
Approach to Youth
2000 Issues: State
of Maryland

Project 1999:
State of Illinois

Youth 2000: A Solution
The HMissouri Matrix

o
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YOUTH 2000 PROJECTS

Identifying current needs and service
barriers; conducting youth censux and
analyzing and disseminating model
programs tailored to State's neceds

Project to strengthen municipalities
capacity to respoase to youth
through increased data collection
and analysis

Stat? plan to ecliminate duplication
of youth services & form public/
privite partnerships

Development of a comprehensive
community-based planning program,
governor's core planning group and
an index to measure progress on
problems and project success;
conduct of conferaences and public
information campaigns to ecducate
public on youth problems and project
goals

Establishing a Youth 2000 public/
private scctor task force to
develop State Youth policy; hosting
regional seminars and Governors
Youth and state conferences

Using a statewide conference and
the issuance of challenge grants

to 10 PI”™> to stimulate local
awareness and lesdership in support
of services for at-risk youth

Creating new partnership between
business. labor, religious
organizations and local officials
to focus attention on needs of
at-risk youth and identify
endangered communities

pirecting and developing new
policy analysis and planning
tool to identify nceds, existing
services, gaps in services and
goals that would facilitate
partnership coordination
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YOUTH 2000 PROJECTS

Youth 2000: Easiness
Liaison Project:
Oregon

Youth 2000: oOur
Femilies, Our Strength
Nebraska

Yout@_ZOOO: State of

Hawaii

Youth 2000 Technical
Assistance Center:
New Jersey
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Extension of Governor's Students
Retention Initiative to 10
communities to link corporation
field offices in smaller
communities with local govt.,
education, human services and
civic leaders for implementation
of city's invectment plan

Directing an Intergovernmental
Planning Group designed to
strengthen families role in
meeting needs of at-risk youth

Expansion of Schools to Work
Transition Centers to all

public high schools where at-
risk youth can receive career/
life employment training; conduct
of conferences and seminars to
stimulate public awareness and

to enlist community support

Establishing Youth 2000 Technical
Assistance Center in support

of State School Based Youth
Services Program, which assists
in provision of comprehensive
employment, heaith and social
services to youth in 30
communities

an
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Mr. Jongs. The Departments of Labor and HHS have set up a
system .of coordinated grants aimed at providing a —ackage of job
training, education, social services for highly at-risk ,outh.

JOBSTART is a national demonstration aimed at serving high
school dropouts.

The Summer Training and Education Program, STEP, “ests the
effectiveness of adding remedial education and life skills planning
components to traditional summer youth employment programs.

Cities in Schools is an experiment that seeks community owner-
ship hin developing solutions to the problems of dropout-prone
youth.

There are also nuruerous State- and local-funded projects for at-
risk youth, many of which have business involvement. The private
sector on its own is taking on this issue in a growing way.

Where should we go from here? The problem is much broader
than JTPA. As a nation, we need to focus our efforts in three
areas: early childhood, the education system, and “second chance”
education and training.

First, getting the problem at its inception, in early childhood, in-
volves focusing on such things as pre- and post-natal care for preg-
nant teens and encouraging quality child care for preschool educa-
tion.

Second, we need to make sure al. youth have a better first
chance. Schools must work to get those in danger of dropping out
to stay in the system, or other at-risk youth to return to school.

And third, we need to continue to provide a second chance for
those who have dropped out and who do not have the skills neces-
sary to rejoin the system.

In all our programs that serve at-risk youth, we need to break
down barriers to conrdination and integration of services so there
are plenty of resources available to adgiess the multiple needs of
this group. The trick is to implement effective models and bring to-
gether the system in a package of services.

How best to serve at-risk youth is not a new issue. For years, we
have studied this population and have undertaken numerous dem-
onstration programs. We all remember the Youth Employment and
Demonstration Project Acts, to which $1 billion was committed to
try new approaches.

We do know a lot more about what works and what doesn’t work
for these youth. The following are some key ingredients: an inten-
sive learning environment; competency-based instruction, which
recognizes that kids are at different developmental stages and
learn in different ways; a functional approach relating basic skills
to what is needed to get and keep a job; a support network of men-
tors and parental involvement; a holistic af voach, involving a
business partnership and integrated services; accountability, with
clear expectations of performance for instructors and students; and
teaching of self-worth and personal responsibility.

Let me now turn to the Youth Employment Services Act, which
YToglg add a new program for severely disadvantaged youth to

We do have some serious concerns about this bill. We must ask
whether it is worth investing our energies in mounting another
series of 75 to 100 large-scale demonstrations costing about $400
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million over three years. Would it not be better to build on the
knowledge that we have gained? Instead of more large-scale dem-
onstrations, we should work to incorporate what we know into the
fabric of our existing education and training system. At the same
time, it may be useful to use existing resources to mount smaller
demonstration projects that zero in on particv'ar gaps in our
knowledge to find ways to get these youth to participate in our pro-
grams.

Our emphasis should be on reducing barriers to participation,
using the information and resources we already have on what
works and providing technical assistance arnd amending current
laws to facilitate serving this group—not on creating yet another
vehicle further complicating the potential for coordination.

Also defeating the bill’s objective is its complexity: a tortuous
method of allocating funds, the necessity of long-term tracking and
verification, eligibility criteria and data requirements that differ
from the basic JTPA program.

We deeply appreciate the interest of the Committee in address-
ing these sets of problems. I believe we have the resources and the
programs to deal with them. We need to figure out how to make
them work better, and I wouid like to work with the Committee on
the long-term dialogue of how to target and strengthen our pro-
grams in this respect.

Mr. Chairman, this conciudes my formal comments, and we
would be happy to join in any questions you might have.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Jones follows:]

9] |
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STATEMENT OF
ROBERTS T. JONES
ACTING ASSISTANT SECRETARY OF LABOR
FOR EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING
BEFORE THE
SUBCOMMITTEE ON EMPLOYMENT AND PRODUCTIVITY
COMMITTEE ON LABOR AND HUMAN RESOURCES
U.S. SENATE

February 2, 1988

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Subcommittee:

1 am pleased to have this opportunity to testify before you
today on S. 1731, the "Youth Employment Services Act oZ 1987,
and on our efforts to provide basic skills and job training for
severely disadvantaged youth.

I wish to begin by commending the Chairman, Senator Metzenbaun,
and other Committee members for addressing the employment problems
of severely disadvantaged youth. This is an area to which the
Department of Labor has been paying considerable attention in recent
years, and which I will return to in a moament. First, though,

I would like to say a few words about the problem of youth unepploy-
ment generally, and the potential impact of changing demographics
and changing job requirements on that problem.

The most recent unemployment figures show that the national
unenployment rate was 5.8% in December 1987, down nearly a full
percentage point from a Year earlier. The same month, the unemploy-
ment rate for youth aged 16 - 19 was 16.1%, and the rate for black
yough was 33.4%. These figures have improved in recent Years =
- th~ unemployment rate for black Youths has declined cver three
percentage points in the last Year alone and 17% more black youths

are working than a year ago. However, this improvement is not enough.
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The youth unemployment rate is still three times the adult
rate, and the hlack yo.*h rate over 6 1/2 times as great.
T £ind this unacceptable, as I am svre you do.

Although unemployment is transitory in nature for most
youth, for a small segment, unemployment is chronic. This
segment Of youth is disproportionately minority, and poverty
area residents. Dropout youth have roughly twice the unemployment
rate of their counterparts who graduate from high school,
and high school dropouts constitute a majocr share of chronically
unemployed youth. A group at great risk of being dependent
and poor is young, never-married females who Eirst enter
the Aid to Families with pependent Children (AFDC) program
when their children are less than three years old.

We have been studying this unemployment problenm for
years, and a number Of explanations have been offered for
why this small segment of chroricaliy unemployed youth have
such trouble getting and holding a job. Some Of these explanations
relate to labor demand, or why employers don't hire these
kids. We know, for example that there has been a shict of
sone entry level jobs from central cities, where many of
these young people are, to suburbs.

Other explanations of the problem relate to the attributes
of the at-risk youth. They may have unrealistic expectations
regarding wages and work, leading them not to accept jobs.

Some may have other sources of income to live on, from their

O

. 2
B J 2




families, public assistance, or illegal activities, so that
they choose "leisure™ over gainful employment. Many of these
youth lack the education and other skiils necessary for entry
leve! jobs. Many are functionally illiterate and can't even
£111 out a job application. Even if they have the ability

to handle the work, they often lack the work behaviors and
attitudes necessary to be able to find a job, get hired,

and keep {t.

The employment outlook for at-risk youth could improve.
We know from the Department of Lavor's Workforce 2000 project
that over the next 13 years our labor force will ¢-ow more
slowly than at any time since the 1930's. The number of
young workers will decline both relatively and absolutely.
This could result in businesses, colleges and the military
competing and scrambling for 18 year olds, who will be in
short svpply.

However, growing numbers of workrurce entrants are likely
to be minority, from singl: pa-ent families, or poor =-- those
youth who traditionaily have more difficulty in making the
transition to 2mployment. These are the youth who are mere
likely to perform poorly or drop out of school. They more
frequently suffer from health problems, teen Pregnancy, drug
and alcohol problems, psychological and physical stress,
child abuse, and learning disabilities.

Although it has been stated that there cculd be a job
for every gualified youth who wants wne, many disadvantaged

youth may not be able to take advantage of the favorable

O
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demographics if they remain undereducated and unprevaced

for work. The problem is exacerbated because skill rtequirements
for many jobs will be increasing during this period. Many
existing jobs will require higher levels of analyvic and
communication skills, and the level of basic skills required
will continue to rise above mere reading and writing ability.

We face both a challenge and an opportunity in dealing
with at-risk youth. Unless their interrelated probiems are
addressed in a coordinated and integrated fas ion, America‘s
disadvantaged youth are seriously at-risk of becoming the dependent
poor of the 21st century. We need to focus on this problem
because as an economy, we need thesa young new workers. There
is no guestion that targeting seriously at-risk youth has a
strong potential payoff for the Nation.

What are we doing now about the problem of at-risk youth?
Curcently, there ace a number of Federal programs administered
by the Departments of Labor, Edacation, and Health and Human
Services that target or serve at-risk youth. 1In the Department
of Labor, Title IXI-A of the Job Training Partnership Act (JTPa)
provides year-round training and employment services to economically
disadvantaged youth and adults. The program served about 490,000
economically disadvantaged youth in the last program year,
of which over one-quarter were school dropouts. The Job Corps
served over 100,000 economically disadvantaged youth, over
80% of whom were dropouts. The JTPA Summer Youth Employment

and Training Program also serves disadvantaged youth -- 631,000
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in summer 1987 -- although the focus is on youth wino are still

in school.

Education Department programs, including Chapter I programs
for educationally disadvantaged children, handicapped programs,
vocati:-nal education programs, and Adult Education programs
serve large numbers of at-risk youth. Th~ two largest HHS
programs Serving at-risk youth are the Community Services Block
Grant and the Social Services Block Grant. Together, these
programs provide billions of dollars of resour:es that can
be directed to at-risk youth. States and localities of course,
also make large investments of their own in Aisadvantaged youth,
specifically in education and ’ocial services.

For some time the Depz-tment of Labor has been concerned
that our programs were not reaching enough of the hardest to
serve youth, particularly .hose who have dropped out of school
and are unemployed or unemployable. 1In response to this concern,
we have undertaken a number of initiatives to refocus our programs
on this group that I would like to briefly describe.

Legislation. Amendments to the Job Training Partnership
Act that were proposed by the Administration and subsequently
enacted, added remedial education and literacy training to
the Summer Youth Program. Early in 1987 the Administration
proposed an AFDC Youth Initiative that would add to the JTPA
Summer Youth Program an option for local service delivery areas
to use funds to ptovide a comprehensive, year-round program

of intensive services to youth on welfare and in welfare families.

.

62




O

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

—-6-

I will return to the subject of youth legislation later ip»
my statement.

Performance Standards. The Department is currently in

the process of revising JTPA pecrformance standards for Program
Year 1988. oOne of the issues we have raised for comment in
these revisions centers on youth and how we might increase

the JTPA programs Emphas.s on attainment of basic education
and occupational skills commonly recojnized as necessary

for getting and keeping a first job. If these changes are
feasible, we expect that they will encourage more longe-range,
intensive interventions to meet the needs of at-risk youth.

Technical Assistance. We are working with Brandeis
University to develop guides and training for the JTPA system
vo improve local programs* capacity for serving at risk youth,
particularly in the areas of literacy and basic skills training,
and to share information on successful program models that
have worked for this group.

Planning Guidance. The Department is preparing planning
guidance to the States for Program Year 1988 that emphasizes
increasi t services to at-risk youth, e.courages the inclusion
of basic and remedial education components in all JTPA programs,
encourages the development of enriched, longer-tern program
interventions to better serve those individuals most at-risk
who have multiple needs, and encourages better JTPA coordination
with other agencies and prograri, particularly for youth

with multiple needs.
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Research and Demonstration Projects. To acquire a betrer

understanding of the approaches and models or sets of services

that are effective in making disadvantaged youth more employable,

the Department nas undertaken an ambituous research and demonstration

agenda.

Let me just briefly mention a few of these projects

which may be of interest to you.

o
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DOL/HHS Coordination Grants. The Departments of

Labor and Health and Human Services are funding a

number of projects aimed at providing a coordinated
package of job training, educaticn, and social services,
typically funded by several Federal and local agencies,
for highly at-risk youth, including in-school, dropout
prone youth; recent dropouts; homeless and runaway

youth and youth transitioning from foster care; and

youth wi.h developmental disabilities who are transitioning
from school o work. Among the approaches being

tested are using volunteer adults from the business
community as advisors or counselors; combining intensive
counseling, tutoring and part-time employment to

keep at-risk youth in school; and adding job training
components to existing centers nroviding health,

parenting and life skills training to teen parents.
JOBSTART is a national demonstration, funded in conjuction
with the Ford Foundation, aimed at se:ving hign school
dropouts. This demonstration features much more

intensive Services -- including both basic education
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and training in a vocational skill for each enrollee
-- than is typically provided under JTPA Title

II-A. 1In many ways, this demonstration ig testing

the effectiveness of a comprehensive, non-residential
program similar to that offered in a primarc! iy
residential setting by the Job Corps program.

We are also evaluating non-residential alternatives
within our package of Job Corps demonstration projects
known as Job Corps 1I.

The Summer Training and Education Program (STEP)

is a naticnal demonstration, also funded in conjunction
with the Ford Foundation, testing the effectiveness

of adding remedial education and "life skills”

Planning components to traditional summer youth
employment programs. The demonstration also includes

4 Year-round component that provides remedial education
and homework assistance throughout the school year.

The purpose of the experiment 1s to determine the
effect of such a program on school completion,
employment, and prevention of teenage pregnancy.

Cities in Schools is an experiment funded by several

Federal agencies -- including Labor -- that seeks
community ownership in developing solutions to the
problems of dropout-prone youth. It brings parents,
employers, and community agencies into the schools in
17 states *)> supplement standard educational irstruc-

fon and counseling to help youth stay in school and to
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zeduce school violence. A variety of health. social.
basic ducation and training, and employment fervices
are provided in a school setting, and day cate is
provided by centers affiliated with the project.

[] We have worked with the Council of Chief State School

Officers and the Department of Education to develop
a program that wi{ll award ten action grants to State
education agencies. The grants will be used to seek
the adoption of State policies or legislation aimed
at increasing the assistance for the educational

and related needs of at-risk youth.

This gfves you some idea, but does not begin to fully
describe the scope of the Dep. tment's rescatch and demonstrat:ion
effort focusing on at-risk youth. And, in addition to these
national demonstrations funded by my Department, the Department
of Education has two different sources of funds in fiscal year
1988 earmarked by the Congress for dropout demonstration programs.
The larger of the two appropriations, almost $24 million, will
fund dropout demonstration programs authorized under the Senate
version of the omribus education legislation now pending before
Congress. A separate appropriation of almost $5 million will
be used to support exemplary dropout prevention and reentry
programs within vocational education. There are also numerous
State and locally funded projects for at-risk youth, many of
which have business involvement. Finally, the private sector

on its own has taken on this {ssue. For examnle, the Committee
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for Economic Development recently teleased a repott on invest-
ment strategies for the educationally disadvantaged.

Where should we go from here? We need to recognize
that the problem is much broader than JTPA. As a Nation,
we need to focus our efforts in three areas: eaxly childhood,
the cducation system, and "second chance™ education and training.
First, we need to focus on getting at the problem at its
inception, in early childhood. This involves focusing on
such things as pre and post natal care for pregnant teens,
and encouraging quality child care and preschool education.

Second, we need to make sure that all youth have a better
"first chance.” sSchools must work to get those in danger of
dropping out to stay in school or other at-risk youth to
return to school, in whatever settings are most effective.
Many children at risk of failing now attend schools at risk
of failing students. We need to work for more accountability
in education, both for the schools and their students.

Third, we need to continue to provide a second chance
for those who have dropped out and those who do not have
the skills necessary to function effectively in the labot
market. This i{s where our training and employment programs
play a major role. The problem we now face is how to attract
the most severly disadvantaged youth into second chance education
and training sys: 3.

In all of our programs that serve at-risk youth, we need

to break down barriers to coordination and integration of

)
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services, so that the multiple needs of these youth can be

met. There are plenty of resources available to address

the nceds of this group. The trick is to implement effective

models and packages of services.

How best to serve at-risk youth is not a new concern.

For years we have studied this population, and have undertaken

numerous demonstration programs to test better ways of serving

then.

We all remember the Youth Employment and Demonstration

Projects Act of the late 1970's, to which a billion dollars

was committed to try new approaches. Since that time we

have spent h ‘dreds of millions more to find out what works

for at-risk youth.

Not all of these projects had rigorous evaluations or

reached concrete concluszions, but we do know a lot now about

what works, and what does not work, for these youth. The

following are key ingreadients that we know are cssential

for successfal youth programming:

]

L]

an intensive learning environment:
competency-based instruction, which recognizes
that kids ar at differenct developnental stages
and learn differently;

a functional approach relating basic skills to
what is needed to get and keep a job:

a support network of mentors and advocates, and
parental involvement:

a holistic approach, involving a business partnership
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and integrated services -- JTPA can't do it all;
(-] accountability, with clear expectations of perfor-
manCe for instructors and students; and

] teaching of self-worth and personal responsibility.

Let me now turn to the Youth Employment Services Act,
which would add a new program for severely disadvantaged youth
to JTPA. This new progras nas several objectives: providing
more intensive training and employment services; targeting
on severly disadvantaged youth; involving business ¢ommunitie;
as "significant partners” in provid,ng training and employment
services (which includes their making financial cont:ibutions);
rewarding the job training system for serving the hardest
to serve; and mounting a large-scale demonstration effort
to learn more about serving serverely disadvantaged youth.

1 Jo not disagree with most of these objectives but,
nevertheless, I do have some serious concerns about the bill.
I do not think the bill can achieve its objectives. As I
mentioned earlier, we have already spent over a billicn dollars
to learn what works for severly disadvantaged, at-risk youth.
A National Academy of Sciences Report marizes what was learned
from the YEDPA projects. We must ask whether it is worth
irvesting our energies in mounting another series of 75-100
large scale demonstrations costing $400 million over 2 years.
Would it not be better to build on the kn. #ledge we have gained
and concentrate our efforts on macing better use 2f the funds,

the services, and the institutions we have that serve at-risk
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youth? 1Instead of more large-scale deponstrations, ~e should

work to incorporate what we know into *he fabric of our existing
education and training programs. At the same time, it may

be useful to use existing resources to mount smaller demonstration
projects that zero in on the gaps in our knowledge and that

find ways to get these youth to participate in our program.

The bil) assumes that the incentives provided will change

the behavior of the job traingin system, an. direct it toward

the most severely disadvantaged. There is not doubt that this
program seeks to serve the most disadvantaged clientele --

16 to 24 year olds who are school dropouts or whose educational
level is below the eighth grade, and who have not participated
in an education or training program or do not have significant
work experience in the last nine months. The problem for this
group is how do we get them back int> the education and training
systems. We have programs and funds for these individuals,

but we have difficulty maintaining the participation rates

in those programs, particularly in certain geographic areas.

To have a chance of being successful, any new legistation dealing
with this group must acknowledge the participation osblem

and sozehow address the environmental needs, the cultural views,
and the prrceptions held by the youth and their parents 7»f
education and training programs -- perceptions that result

in these youi. not taking advantage of the opportunities that
are there. Our emphasis should be on reducing barriers to

participation, using the information and resources we already
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have on what works, providing technical assistance, and amending
current laws to facilitate serving this 5IrouUpP, not on creating

*t another vehicle further complicating the potential for
coordination.

The bill seeks to achieve greater business involverent,
which is a desirable objective -- the foundation of the current
JTPA system is business involvement.. Hosever, only one-quarter
of the projects in the proposed pregram must utilize the primary

N means for obtaining this involvement -- JTPA private industry
councils. There is nothing wrong with trying to get the private
secter to contribute to these efforts. The JTPA system and
such initiatives as the Boston Compact demonstrate that businesses
will voluntarily contribute time, staff, and financial resources.
The {roblem is in trying to obtain such _ontributions through
a iegislative matching requirement. Under Title III of JTPA
we have seen the problems such a matching requirement can create.

Also defeating the bill's objectives is its complexity:

2 tartuous method of allocating funds; the nece.sity of long-term
tracking and verification of program outcomes to determine
allocation3; eligibility criteria and data requirements that
differ from other JTPA program<; and the number and variations

of the demonstrations, that I mentioned.

Finally, there is the prorlem of cost. The funding level
could be $40Q million over turee years. Current budget constraints
allow little room for new initiatives, especially when there

are betver ways of addressing the same problems thriugh existing
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program authorities and rescuzies. For these reasons and because
of those noted before, we oppose enactment of 5.1731.

As I indicated at the begining of ny remarks, I appreciate
the interest of the Committee in addressing the unemployment
problems of severely disadvantaged youth. I believe we have
the resources and programs to deal with the problem. We need
to figure out how to make them work better, and I would like
to work with the Committee in exploring this subject. For
example, I believe we can strengthen the JTPA Title II-A nrogra
for youth and that much better use can be made Of the Summer
Youth Program funds.

Mr. Chairman, this concludes my prepared remat ;. I would
be pleased to respond to any questionsS that you or other Committee

members may have.
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Senator MikuLskr. Tha 1k you very murh, Mr. Jones.

Congressman Mfume, I know you have a Democratic Caucus, I
believe on the Contra aid issue. Did you have any questions before
you leave?

Mr. MFUME. No, I do not, Madam Chair. Thank you again.

N Senator MixuLskr. We really appreciate this joint participation
y you.

Senator Metzenbaun:, do you have any questions of Mr. Jones?

Senator METZENBAUM. Yes, I do.

Last year, Secretary Brock highlighted this problem in the first
annual state of the work force address. Last morith, Secretary
McLaughlin called for a coacerted effort to close the widening
skills gap.

The one negative finding in an otherwise glowing report on
JTPA by the Commission appointed by the President to evaluate
JTPA was that the current system does not reach the severely dis-
advantaged.

You have serinus reservations about the YES Act. There is a con-
sensus tixat this group is not being served by your current pro-
grams, and you offer no real alternatives to help this target popula-
tion.

Is it the Department of Labor’s position that you are now doing
enough to take care of these severely disadvantaged young
people—because the President’s swn Commission’s report conclud-
ed that these people were not being served well. And I do not hear
anything from you today that gives us any assurance that those
most in need will be given any assistance.

Mr. Jongs. No, I think, Senator, it is quite the contrary. Not oniy
have both Secretaries you indicated spoken to that issue, byt we
think that is one of the major issues that we are converned about,
to increase the services to this population of people. We absolutely
agree with you.

The question is what problem are we trying to address. Right
now, we are very focused on the fact that the report you have indi-
cated, along with several others, have suggested that our current
resources, the current JTPA system, and some of the current edu-
cation systems, are not targeting and focusing their resources on
the hardest to cerve of this grouy, the dropouts and dropout-prone
and those in poverty neighborhoods. That issue is a significant
public polizy issue—how to better get our system to deal both in
terms of numbers and in terms of program design with the things
that we know it tanes to impact those kids in a successful way.

The Department has engaged in a very lengthy series of initia-
tives to deal with that issue. We are substantially revising our per-
formance standard system tc bring direct focus on exactly this
issue, to increase credit attainment in education and sk.ll learning,
to increase credit for serving this particular group of people, to
focus all of our systems on this set of issues.

Senator MEerzENBAUM. What was the last one—to increase
credit?

Mr. Jowes. To give performance standards credit for serving this
group of people and for serving them with more remedial and liter-
acy and basic skills competencies tha. will allow them to enter into
the labor market. One of the criticisms, Senator, when JTPA was
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passed some years ago, was that we set up a hasic labor exchange
training system, but we diZ not put those things into it that al-
lowed local communities, led by the Mayor of Baltimore and other
people, to bring together the resources in a way that focused on dis-
advantaged youth. That is an expensive set of services. It requires
competency attainment, counseling, training, remredial eduvcation,
and some support mechanisms.

That system, when it was originally set up, was largely focused
on job placement, which tended *o detract from that. So we have
been changing that. We have published the m: or changes to it, to
refocus the JTPA system on that issue.

We incwroduced legislation last year to redirect the Summer
Youth Employment Program: to welfare, dropout, hardcore disad-
vantaged youth on a year-round basis. We have put out major stud-
ies on major issues; we have demonstrations runrning all over the
country——

Senator MeTzENBAUM. That Summer Youth Prog am was for
kids still in school.

Mr. Jonges. The Summer Youth Program currently is for them.
We have asked that it be extended throughout the year so that we
can deal with the substantive 1ssue of those kids who are in danger
of dropping out or have dropped out. T  issue of that group, Sena-
tor, is the same however we attenpt ittack it. Our problem
today is that we Lave a substantial number of our resources that
are not focused on that set of issues. We think we need to get that
done in this procass befrre we add new systems te it.

Once we get that going and get the system set .2 so that people
engage in it, we think we have an opportunity to make a signifi-
cant impact on it.

Senator MeTZENBAUM. Mr. Jones, I must tell you that I am
really disappointed in the Labor Department’s testimony, and I am
disappointed in their actions. Giving credit for performance stand-
ards—that sounds god, that is a nice phrase. But we are dealing
with 700,000 kids, walking the streets of America.

The Labor Departraent comes forward ara tells us they are con-
cerned because there is $400 million to be spent. This afterrroon or
tomorrow over in the House, they are going to vote on z.. 7 336
million in one year for the Contras down in Nicaragua. We are
spending $1 million a day protecting Kuwaiti ships in the Persian
Gulf. And you come forward and tell me you are w irried about
$400 million over three years.

What is bothersome is that this problemn has continued to be ag-
gravated. These kids are getting no attention. Let them set a
match to some city, then this Labor Department will be concerned,
this Administrativa w”’1 think about it. But until something dras.ic
occurs, you cannot ge any action out of this Administration. For
seven years, it has been in office and has let down these disadvan-
taged young people. We have moved backwards.

1 do not believe that ou accept the responsilility, and you prob-
ably do not really deserve my concern, my exer.ised concern. But
the fact is, it is so disheartening, so disheartening, to get these con-
vgrsatig)ns and speeches and gobbledegook. These kids need more
than that.
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I say to you as the author of this Act and as Chairman of the
Labor Subcommittee of the Senate, we are prepared to work with
the Administration. We are prepared to change the formula. We
are prepared to change some of the language. We are prepared to
work with you to bring about a result that does something in a
hurry. If we vorked together, if we came forward with a program
together, we would be able to pass it promptly through the Con-
gress of t:ie United States.

But day after day, we cannot get the cooperation of the Adminis-
tration on programs of concern to literally hundreds of thousands,
in some instances millions, of Americans who are getting the short
end of the economic scheme in this ¢ suntry.

Thank you, Madam Chairman. E.cuse me for getting exercised,
but it bothers me.

Mr. Jongs. If I might, Senator, I take iscue with several of your
comments. The Administration proposed A set of changes last year
to the Congress, and we did not get any response or support in ad-
dressing those issues. That legislation directly addressed the points
that you just mentioned—changes in the formula, changes in the
gligible group, changes in the services that we think are needed to

o that.

Secondly, we have spent a billion dollars on research, on demon-
sltlrations across this {_untry. We have learned something from
them——

Senator METZENBAUM. Is there a bill? I cannot find it.

Mr. JoNEs. Yes, sir. There is still a bill pending before this Con-
gress. It is available if you would like to Join with us in taking a
look at it. We would be delighted.

Senator METZENBAUM We do not knovr what it is. Who has it?
Who introduced it?

Mr. JonEs. It was introduced at the seginniug of last year as a
part of the comprehensive overall Trade Bill. It was to redefine

Senator MerzENBAU. That was part of the Comprekensive
Summer Youth Program.

Mr. Jonzs. Yes, sir. It was to reconstruct that money to de inany
of the things that yon have addressed here. Secondly, Mr. Chair-
man——

Senator MerzEnBAUM. Is the Admin.  son prepared to sit
down with us now, promptly, this week, and work sut some kind of
movement forwz i on this problem of disadvantaged youth?

Mr. JonEes. Absclutely. We are not cnly interested in doing that.
We are interested in doing it on several of the subjects that vou
have raised——

Senator METzENeAUM. I am not talking about a comprehensive
bill. I would ke to do it to take care of these hids. One bill; move
it fast; get Quayle and Hatch——

Mr. JONES. Senator, this bill does not take care of these kids.
This bill does not take care of the numbers of visadvantaged kids
that we have out there. The issue is much !acrger than that, and it
is an issue of targeting a substantial amount of resources inty it.

There are very valid issues hzre that we would be happy to sit
with the Committee and address in terms of changses in the current
law to increase its efficacy and targeting. W= do nct think that the
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money issue is the only part of this at all at this point. But we do
think there are flaws in the current system, ones that we would be
delighted to sit down with the Committee and address.

I will suggest to you further that you will see formal statements
along this line in the next few weeks, as the budget and legislative
programs come out, that continue to suggest our willingness to ad-
dress this series of issues within the current structures that we
have to try to target tl.ese systems in order that we can affect
these kids.

Senator METZENBAUM. I invite the Secretary and such others as
she wants to bring along to meet with Senator Kennedy, the over-
all Chairman of the Committee, myself, and other members of the
Labor Committee. We are prepared to meet, to work out a piece of
legislation. We will t happy to invite in Senator Hatch, Senator
Quayle. und others ¢ "« Committee from that side of the aisle.
We wrald like to ge e action and get it promptly. The invita-
ticu 1s out to you, and ..¢ await further word from you.

Senator MikuLski. Mr. Jones, I share many of the sentiments ex-
pressed by Senator Metzenbaum. We have a couple of situations
here. One, we id have some reforms in terms of job training that
we moved through the Trade Bill. That is now kind of out there, if
you will, in conterence, and so we are waiting to see whe:e that is.

Second, some of the suggestions made by the Administration
meant that it was the same money spread too thin.

But what I am going to come to is this. I think we all agree that
this is not only an at risk population, but in terms of our ccuntry,
it is a high-risk population. Obviously, you are thinker and an ad-
ministrator of long-term experience. I am sure you, like I, remem-
ber James Conan's book, “Social Dynamite”—well, we do not want
that dynamite to explcde. So the question is how can we deal with
it.
And I think some of your points are well-taken in terms of the
complexity of the bill. As someone who was both a welfare adminis-
trator and a city councilwoman, sometimes, we destroy ourselves
the good objective.

You talk about the method of allocating funds, and I ‘hink the
previous witnesses have talked about that. And also, I think Sena-
tor Metzenbaum has said they are dealing with that in terms of his
own suggestions.

You talked about eligibility criteria and data requirements that
differ from other JTPA programe and the number and variations of
the demcustiration projects.

] think those are all valid, because onc of tl. things I have
iearned is that JTPA, for what it tried to do, is doing it. We are
now wanting vo 5,0 and not just “cherrypick” populations.

I would not like us to have an alternative to JTPA, and I think
what the League of Cities and Conference of Mayors are saying is
if we are going to target high-risk, put it within the framework of
the JTPA.

I think that is a very excellent recommendation for us to ex-
plore. I think that is the kind of thing that might have bipartisan
suppci?, brtween Senator Quayle and Senator Metzenbaum and
myself.
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I know that we have done a great deal of social research, and I
know you are turning to institutions with longstanding activity in
this area, like Brandeis. So I think what we are looking at is how
can we go after this at-risk population—not necessarily invent a
new structure or new complicated formulas, because everybody will
go iunning off to meet the requirements rather than meeting the
goal.

I think those are the kinds of concrete things that if we could
start working on, would be very useful to the Committee. And we
look forward to——

Mr. Jones. And those things, let me assure you, we are absolute-
ly willing to address. We think there are several very important
problems. The allocation process not only of JTPA currently, but
several other major programs, clearly do not target moneys into
this type of an issue.

Senate~ MikuLskl. That is right.

Mr. Jongs. Secondly, the coordination issue. We cannot address
disadvantaged youth without bringing together the major educa-
tion programs and our programs and the HHS programs that are
all targeted on that zroup of peopie, but in the City of Baltimore
are not working together to focus on that issue, and sometimes we
create Federal barriers in our legislation.

Senator MikuLskl. Well, actually in the City of Baltimore, they
are trying to work together. But your point is well-taken. .

So I think one, we are trying to look at perhaps how this could
interact with STPA or be in addition to JTPA as a very important
first step, and recognizing that this is just a hardcore population.
But I ‘hink that is where we would want to start in the first in.
stance.

Now, we have with us today a Senator who has had a Iongstand-
ing interest in this area of activity, and over in the Judiciary Com-
mittee, Senator, I believe you chaired a committee on juvenile de-
linquency; am I correct?

S~nator SpecTErR. The Juvenile Justice Subcommittee, Madam
Chairman, yes, in Judiciary, for six years.

Senator MikuLskl. That is exactly right, and I know that you
have learned a lot about this particular population, not when they
are young, but when we are supporting them in Federal prisons
and In parole situations.

Senator Specter, we welcome sou to this hearing and wonder if
you have any questions or something you would wish to pursue.

Senator SPECTER. Thank you, Madam Chairman.

First I commend you, Madam Chairman and this Subcommittee
for undertaking these hearings on this very important legislation
which I have cosponsored along with Senator Metzenbaum and
others. And I regret that I could not have been here earlier be-
cause of so many commitments, but I did want to come by, and I
would ask leave that a statement be put in the record at the outset,
if I may, Mzdain Chairman.

Senator Mikutrski. Without objection.
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STATEMENT OF HON. ARLEN SPECTER, A U.S. SENATOR FROM
THE STATE OF PENNSYLVANIA

Senator SpECYER. I am interested to hear yuur comments, Mr.
Secretary. I know of your interest personally and the interest of
you- department, and it is an enormous problem which requires a
concerted attack and cooperation between the Administration and
the Congress.

As the Chairman has noted, I have been involved in these prob-
lems very deeply as chairman of the Juvenile Justice Subcommit-
tee for six years, 1981 through 1986 on the Judiciary Committee,
but before that time had a great deal of experience as District At-
torney of the City of Philadelphia, where a good bit of our efforts
were directed to try to get people out of che juvenile crime cycle,
and employment is a critical factor &'ong that line.

And I have seen the problems in our big cities like Philadelphia
and Pittsburgh, but it is also a problem in lesser cities. It does not
have to be Philadelphia or Pittsburgh or Baltimore or Cleveland to
command our attention. '

I think that Senator Metzenbaum’s thought is a good one, to
have the highest-level people sit down and try to get the program
moving forward. And there have been ideas, as ou have outlined,
from your department, from the Adm:uistration and from you, and
we really need to get together and intermesh them, but too often,
we all have so many other responsibilities that they just do not get
attended to unless people at the Secretarial level or at the Senato-
rial level work on them.

I want to thank you collaterally for some of the activities that
your Department and my staff have been working on, tr¥,ing to get
some model programs for youth in some of the cities in Pennsylva-
nia. That is a small part of the problem, and this addresses it in a
larger context.

So I am glad to be here if only briefly, and I have other commit-
ments, Madam Chairman and am going to ask tu be excused. J
think the work of this Subcommittee is very important, and 1
would like to see it go forward, and I would personally commi’ my
own time to come to such a meeting and try to move it ahead expe-
ditiously.

Senator MikuLski. Well, thank you, Senator. You should know in
the previous panel that testified, Mayor Schmoke particularly drew
an analysis of experience between you and him, former prosecutors
who then spent your time prosecuting i-ids when really, deep in
ﬂour heart, you wanted tc help kids. We thank you again for your

ipartisan support on this, and we will be picking up on it.

Senator SPECTER. Thank yuu.

Senator MikuLski. Mr. Jones, I think part of what we are saying
is let’s sit down and start working it out. And I think there are
those of us who would like to head in the direction of ind to be
able to interlock it and interweave it with JTPA, stortirg with that
as the rubric.

Second, I think that Mayor Schmoke and Scnator White had
some good ideas that I would like both Comn ittee staff and you to
consider. The White idea of a market analysis, I think is good. You
know, we do not want the World War II GI Bill experience, where
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we were training pilots after World War 1I, and we had a surplus
<f pilets. You understand that.

I think the Schmoke recommendation for sign-off and some of
the others out of the League of Cities, is important, hecause we do
not want a group to be able to just come in and apply for funds and
go off on thur own. We know that in order to have a multiplier
effect on the community, we need the coordinated efforts of all the
agencies.

So let’s put our thinking caps on, pull out the blue pencils, and
like Senator Specter, I will be happy to come to a meeting so we
can get started.

Thank you both very much.

I would like now to move to our panel of very distinguished wit-
nesses. | am going to ask Marian Wright Edelman, of ine Chil-
dren’s Defense Fund; Mr. Fritz Wenzler, of Johnson & Johnson;
and Dorothy Stoneman, the President of the Youth Action of the
East Harlem Block Schools, a very innovative program, to please
come on up.

We want t~ thank you for coming. Actually, I have heara about
each member of the panel. Some, we have worked with, like Ms.
Edelman; and Ms. Stoneman, we have been reading about your
wonderful and exciting, dynamic approach to this kind of adult
population that is either in our schools, roaming car corridors,
with really no place to go, as well as those out on the street. And
you, Mr. Wenzler, with Johnson & Johnson, heading up a PIC pro-
gram in New Jersey, wherc you have really put in the resources of
the private sector, I think, in a very creative way.

So we look forward to hearing all of your testimony. And what ic
so great is “hat you have been right out there on the front lines, so
you know what works and what does not. And sometimes, we like
tolﬁgnd good intentions, which do not necessarily result in good re-
sults.

So, Ms. Edelman, do you waant to lead off?

STATEMENTS OF MARIAN W~ __ AT EDELMAN, PRESIDENT, CHIL-
DREN'S DEFENSE FUNI* /ASHINGTON, DC, ACCOMPANIED BY
CLIFF JOHNSON, DIREC 'R, YOUTH EMPLOYMENT DIVISION,
CDF; FRITZ WENZLER, \ (CE PRESTDENT, CORPORATE STAFF,
JOHNSON & JOHNSON, NEW BRUNSWICK, NJ, AND CHAIRMAN,
GREATER RARITAN I RIVATZ INDUSTRY COUNCIL; AND DORO-
THY STONEMAN, PRESIDEN:, YOUTH ACTION PROGRAM OF
THE EAST HARLEM BLOCK SCHOOLS, NEW YORK, NY

Ms. EpELMAN. ‘i'hank you, Senator Mikulski.

I am very pleased to have this opportunity to testify on behalf of
the Children’s Defense Fund on S. 1731, but also to represen. the
Natjonal Youth Employment Coalition, a group of more than 50 or-
ganizations across the country concerned about the employment
and training needs of America’s young people, especially those who
are most disadvantaged.

The Coalition recently adopted a policy statement urging imn e-
diate Senate consideration of the Youth Employment Services Act
that Senators Metzenbaum, Specter ard yourself have sponsored,
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! which is a long overdue response to the persistent employment bar-
riers facing the Nation’s most disadvantaged youth.

I will submit the full text of the Coalition’s statement and a list
-uf endorsing organizations for the record.

I want to thank you and the cosponsors for your leadership on
this important issue, and you, for chairing this important hearing.
I particularly welcome the leadership and strong voice of Senator
Metzenbaum in stimulating discussions about the appropriate Fed-
eral response within Congress and look forward to working with
Members of this Committee, including the Chair today, in trying to
refine and strengthen a youth employment measure for irnmediate
consideration by th = Senate.

We are so deeply concerned about the future employment and
earnings prospects of today’s most disadvantaged you:h, and we be-
lieve the Congress can no longer ignore this plight. The deteriorat-
ing employment prospects of older teenagers and young adults with
less than a high school education reflect a profoundly disturbing
national trend, one that has received far too little attention in Fed-
eral policy during the 1980s.

Compelling evidence shows that young people with the least edu-
cation are being left behind. It can be found in falling fuis-time em-
ployment rates for high school dropouts over the past two decades,
among other indicators. As recently as 1968, a majority of male
dropouts under 20 still managed to find full-time jobs. But by 1986,
fewer than one in three could do so. Fuli-time employment rates
for .feénale dropuuts also fell from 21 to 13 percent during this same
period.

The employment problems of less-educated youth do not evapo-
rate when they reach adulthood. A recent report by the Children’s
Defense Fund, with the help of Dr. Andrew Sum at Northeast Uni-
versity's Center for Labor Market Studies, found that the average
earnings of male dropouts ages 20 to 24 fell by 42 percent between
1973 and 1946, with even more severe losses of 61 percent among
young black male dropouts.

Young male graduates not going on to college also suffered major
earnings declines, and only young men with a college degree were
substantially shielded from such losses.

One of the clearest lessons to be drawn from this data is that a
strong foundation of basic academic skills is essential for young
people to compete in today's job market. Those with the weakest
basic skills are five times more likely to drop out of schoo! and tc
be jobless than those with above-a\ *rage skills. And as the Chair
knows, we have been deeply concerned with teenage pregnancy
prevention efforts, and again we find that the two best predictors
of who is going to be pregnant are puverty and basic skills levels.
Young peogle who are in the bottom fifth in reading and math by
the time they are 18, when compared to those with above-average
sk.lls, are nine times more likely to have babies out-of-wedlock.
And when we nold basic skills and poverty rates constant, there
are almost identical teen pregnancy rates between black, white and
Hispanic young people.

Another powerful and inescapable conclusion which arises from
our research is that young families are rapidly losing ground in
our society and many are not even p>tting started as a result of
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worsening economic conditions. While the median income of all
American families was roughly the same in 1986 as it was in 1973,
after adjusting for inflation, the median income for young families,
those headed by individuals under 25, has fallen by nearly one-
foorth. One-half of #'1 children living in young families and nearly
thtree-fourths of all Liack children in such families now live in pov-
erty.

Therefore it is important for the Nation to understand that the
problems of less educated young people are not simply an employ-
ment issue but also a family issue and that the stability of the next
generation of families is now jeopardized by our failure to respond
to widespread joblessness and falling earnings among disadvan-
taged youth.

Young men who earn enough to support at least a small family
above the poverty level are consistently three to four times more
likely to marry than those with earnings below the three-person
poverty line.

When we look at the decline in marriages in the black and white
communities, and when we look at the fact *hat 60 percent of all
black babies today are being born to never-married mothers, and
the failure of black faunilies to form, the explanation lies right here
in the lack of yveparation for jobs, in the lack of adequate jobs,
stable jobs, and jobs that pay a wage that enables them to support
a family.

There is no higher priority than providing a stable economic base
for young families in America.

Earnings losses among young workers have been fueled by sever-
al factors, For those who find work, the culprit is an eroding mini-
mum wage, which has lost one-fourth of its real value since 1981.
The Congress has the opportunity to do something about that this
year by indexing it to keep pace with average pay levels. CDF is
hopeful that members of this Committee will take a leading role in
this effort.

For other young people, falling earnings are the result of fewer
opportunities to work. Education and training initiatives such as
those envisioned in S. 1731 are therefore essential to prepare our
most disadvantaged youth for the jobs that will be available in
growing sectors of the United States economy.

We have been greatly encouraged by your leadership in introduc-
ing this bill It targets assistance to severely disadvantaged young
" people who are rarely served by programs funded under Titie II-A
of the Job Training Partnership Act. It also charts the appropriate
direction for solutions to the problem of severely disadvantaged
youth by placing a heavy emphasis on the development of basic
academic skills and the nrovision of more intensive vocational
training and support services.

There are numerous other components of the bill as introduced
which deserve strong support by this Committee. We applaud, for
example, the Act’s recognition of the need for support sesvices such
as child care, counseling and transportation, which enable disad-
vantaged youth to participate in education and training programs.
And we applaud and support your call for collaborative efforts on
the part of all members of the community.
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I will not go over my time. We have submitted a broader state-
ment for the record, and I will leave it there, and be responsive to
any questions that you might have.

Senator MikuLskl. Thank you very much, Ms. Edelman. Your
entire testimony will be submitted 5~ the record in full.

Would you introduce the m au? .
Ms. EpELMAN. Yes. This is . who will answer all of
your hard questions, who is v 1 - +,t our Youth Employment

Division at the Children’s Defense tuuu.

Senator MikuLski. Thank you.

[Th]e prepared statement of Ms. Edelman with an attachment fol-
lows:
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Madame Chair and Members of the Subcommittee:

1 am Marian Wright Edelman, president of the Children's
pefense Fund (CDF), a privately-supported putlic charity that for
15 years has sought to serve as an advocate for poor children
and their families. CDF's goal is to educate the nation about
the needs of poor children and encourage preventive investments
which will protect and promote their full and healthy
development. CDF's work Spans a broad range of public policy
issues, including youth employment, education, family income,
health care, child care, and specialized services that are
essential to the well-being of the next generation and the future
of the nation.

I ah pleased to have the opportunity to testify on CDF's
behalf at this hearing on S. 1731, the Youth Employment Sesrvices
Act sponsored by Senators Metzenbaum and Spe: ter. In appearing
before the Subcommittee today, I am also pleased to represent the |
National Youth Employment Coalition, a group of more than 50
organizations across the country concerned about the empioyment |
and training needs of America‘’s young people, especially those
who are the most disadvantaged. The Coalition recently -dJdopted a
policy statement urging immediate Senate consideration ¢f S. 17°¢
as a long-overdue response to the persistent employment parriers
facing the nation's most disadvantaged youths. The Coalition's -
statement applauds the YES Act for buildiny upon the lessons of
past research and recognizing the valuable role that community-
based organizations can play in the development of effective
youth programs. I will submit the full text of the Coalition's
statement and list of endorsing organizations for the record.

Let me begin by expressing CDF's great appreciation to
Senators Metzenbaum and Specter for their strong support of
efforts to halp America’s children and youoth, including their
leadership in sponsoring S. 1731, 1ind to fenator Mikulski for
chairing this important hearing. The deteriorating employment
prospects of older teenagers and young adults with less thaua a
high school education reflect a profoundly disturbing national
trend, one that has received far too little attention in federal
policy during the 1980s. We particulcrly welcome the strong
voice of Senator Metzenbaum in stimulating discussions of an
appropriate federal response within the Congress, -nd we look
forward to working with you and other members of the Committee on
Labor and Human Rescurces to refine and furtiaer strengthen a
youth employment measure for ccnsideration by the Senate.

I would like to take a few minutes this morning to explain
way CDF iS o concerned about the future employment and earnings
prospects of today's most disadvantaged youths, and why we
believe the Congress can no longer ignore their plight. 1In
addition- I will offer some general comments on the approach to
these p: z2lems taken in S. 1731 and a few specific recommenda-
tions orn anow the bill might be strengthened by the Committee.

ERIC "
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Falling 2Zmplovment Rates and Dclining Earnings

With the nation's overall unemployment rate at its lowest
level in ne. ly a decade, continuing joblessness among
Substantial segments of our population 1s all too easily and
irequently overlooked. Underlying the general improvement in
employment conditions, however, are troubling declines in
jobs and wages for america's Youngest and most vulnerable
workers. 1If they continue unabated, these trends threaten to
undermine the strength of the U.S. economy and jeopardize the
very formation of our next generation of young families.

We have grown accustomed to data showing that young people
who drop out of school prior to graduation find 1t difficult to
secure stable employment. Yet the most troubling sides of thas
evidence--that job prospects are deter:iorating for such youths,
and that these problems persist into adulthood--are less familiar
and not broadly understood. Contrary to popular perception, the
basic academic skills of younu Americans are not declining. But
our economy is changing rapidly, imposing new and higher skill
requirements which growing numbers of our young people cannot
meet.

Compelling evidence that young people with the least
education are being left behind can be found in faii_ng full-time
employment rates for high school dropouts over the past two
decades. As recently as 1968, a majJority of mele dropouts under
age 20 still managed to find full-time Jobs, but by 1986 fewer
than one in three could do so. Full-time employment rates for
female dropouts also fell from 21 percent to 13 percent during
this period. Many of the stable Jobs open t¢ dropouts in the
Late 1960s have either disappeared with the decline of r.s.
manufacturing industries or are now reserved for workers with at
least a high school diploma.

The employment problems of less educated youths do not
evaporate when they reach adulthood. Particularly among young
adult men, the comhination of weak basic academic skills and an
eroding wage base have contributed to dramatic declines in theair
real annual earnings. A recent report by CDF and Dr. Andrew Sum
at Northeastern University's Center for Labor Market Studies
found that the average earnings of male dropouts ages 20 to 24
fell by 42 percent between 1973 and 1986, with even more severe
losses (61 percent) among young black male dropouts. Young male
graduates not going on to college also suffered major earnings
declines (28 percent), and only young men with a college degree
were substantially shielded from such losses.

Earnings losses among young workers have been fueled by
several factors. For some young people who wanage to find worl,
the culprit is an eroding minjimum wage, which has lost one-fourth
of its real value since 1981. It is time for the Congress to
raise the federal minimum wage and index it so that 1t keeps pace
with average pay levels, and COF is hopeful that members of this
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Committee will take a leading role in thac effort this year. For
other young people, falling earnings are the result of fewer
opportunities to wor.. Education and training initiatives such
as those envisioned i1n S. 1731 are therefore essential to prepare
our most disadvantaged youths for the jobs which will be
available in growing sectors of the U.S. economy.

one of the clearest lessons to be drawn fr.a this data is
that a strong foundation of basic academic skills is essential
for young people to compete in today's job maraet. CDF has
undertaken extensive research to examine the link bstween basic
skills and teenage pregnancy, documenting that yout..s who by age
18 have the weakest reading and math skills are eight times more
likely to bear children out of wedlock than their peers with
above-average skills. Yet the relationship between strong basic
skiils and youth employment 1s equally striking. Young people
with the weakest basic skills are five times more likely to drop
out of school and be jobless than those wita ahove-average
skills.

7 .other powerful and inescapable conclusion which avises
from wur research is that young families are rapidly losing
ground 1n our society, and many are not even getting started as a
result of worsening economic conditions. While the median income
for all American families was roughly the same in 1986 as it was
in 1973 (after adjusting for inflation), the median income for
young families (those headed by individuals un’=r 25) has fallen
]  nearly one-fourth. One-half of all children living in young
families, and neazly three-fourths of all biack children in such
families, now live in poverty. High rates of joblessness and
falling earnings for young workers lie at the heart of these
profoundly disturbing trends.

We must come to understand that the problems of less
educated young people are not simply an employment issue but also
a family issue, and that the stability of our next generation of
families is now jeopardized by our failure to respond to
widespread joblessness and falling earnings among disadvantaged
youths. Young men who earn enough to support at least a small
family above the poverty .avel are consistently three to four
times more likely to marry than those with earnings below the
three-person poverty line. Between one-third and one-half of the
sharp declines in marriage rates among youhg men du:xng the past
decade can be directly linked to their falling ea:nxngs. We need
to provide a stable economic base for young families in America,
and one place o begin 1s by p:ovxdxng the education and training
young people need to compete in the labor market.

Responding to the Needs of Severely Disadvantaged Youths

How do we reverse the trend toward lower earnings which now
threatens the Zutures of young workers and .eir families? ?2art
of the problem arises directly from an eroding wage base in the
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American cconomy, and the solution will come only with a
fundamental shift in economic prierities which places greater
emphasis on famiiry wages and the support of children rather than
corporate takeovers and tax breaks for the wealthy. vYvet we can
also take some immediate steps to build a Stronger foundation for
young families. The place to begin is by investing i that

CDF has been greatly encouraged by the introduction of
S. 1731, in part because it clearly defines the challenges we
must meet in order to strengthen our federal youth employment
efforts. The YES Act targets assistance to severely
disadvantered young people who are rarely servecd by programs
funded under Title II-A of the Job Train.ng Partnership act
(JTPA) economically disadvantaged 16-24 year olds who have left
school with reading and math skills below the eighth grade level,
and have not participated in an education or trainiug program or
worked more than 150 hours during the previous nine months. Of
course, no set of eligibility crieria can apture the full range
of individual circumstances which olace young people at risk.
For example, youths who have participated brief'y ang unsuccess-
fully in other education or training programs should not be
categorically excluded from demonstration prcjects. Local
partnerships also should be given some flexibility to ensure that
they can serve teenagers wno are homeless, leaving the foster
care system, too poor to document their family income, or
otherwise in crisis., Still, the YES Act puts us on the right
track, promoting cost-effective investments in those young
Americans who most desperately need our help.

The YES Act alsc charts the appropriate direction for
solutions to the problems of severely disadvantageq youths by

skills and the provision of more intensive vocational training
and support services. Improvements in basic skills and the
acquisition of a GED are often necessary first steps on the road
to productive employment, but JTPA programs are rarely of
sufficient duration to enable many school dropouts to reach these
goals, Moreover, JTPA performance standards in many cases
discourage local service delivery areas from launching more
intensive training efforts, despite provisions in the federal
Statute designred to permit adjustment of these standards for more
disadvantaged participants. The YES Act is clearly structured

to allow and encourage local communities to move in a diffevent
and more promising direction.

There ‘are numerous other components of S. 1731 as introduced
which deserve strong support by the Committee. For example, CDF
applauds the YES Act's recognition of the need for support
services such as child care, ~sunseling, and transportation which
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enable severely disadvantaged youths to participate in education
and training programs. The bill also acknowledges tha2t initial
job placement does not always translate into lasting gains in the
labor market for participants, and authorizes monitoring and

transitional support services for a period of up to 18 months
following complet.on of the program.

CDF also welcomes the efforts .ade by the sponsors of
S. 1731 to design ways of d-awing diverse segments of the
cowmunity into collaborative efforts on behalf of severely
disad intaged youths. We enthusiastically endorse the intent of
provisions in the YES Act which require local demonstration
projects to be spoat ~red by partnerships between public or private
nonprofit agencies a... local businesses or industry associations.
But at the same time, we are concerned that these provisions may
define the 1ingredients for successful collaboration too narrowly,
excluding joint efforts which may not have direct business
participation but nonetheless provide a strong foundation for
progress. CDF urges the Committee to open competition for grants
under the YES Act to a broader range of local partnerships,
giving priority to those wit, the greatest diversity and allowing
the nonfederal match to ve met with state or local public funds
as wel: as private resources.

O1e of the more difficult tasks facing the Committee in its
consideration of S. 1731 will be to strike a reasonable balance
between the bi1ll's primary goal of stimulating innovative new
projects and the desire to promote and reward effective efforts.
CDF strongly supports the concept of success payments for
effective programs, but we are also deeply concerned that even
the best demonstration projects need a stable funding base and
time to develop before they can produce results. The heavy
reliance upon success payments in the second anhd third years of
operation envisioned under the YES Act may discourage risk-taking
by local partnerships, penalize pronising but untested
innovations, and establish unrealistic expectations for job
placements and retention. As an alternative, CDF 1 ~ ‘nds that
S. 1731 be revised to provide a stable, three-year . ag bare
for demonstration projects, with success payments usc- CO
continue the most effective programs in succeeding years.

Finally, CDF believes that a strong evaluation component
must be a central part of any demonstration program, and we hope
that the YES Act can be structured to encourage testing of
approaches which seem particularly promising. For example, there
is increasing interest through.ut the country in efforts to
guara' .ee college tuition payments or training opportunities for
disadvantaged youths who earn their high school diplcma or GED.
Similar attempts to combat lack of hope and opportunity among
poor and minority youths should be encouraged in S. 1731, with
special consideration given to projects which seek to serve all
eligible youths within specific neighborhoods or communities.
Vocational training and education projects which engage voung
people 1n productive work within their communities (such as
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rehabilitating lov~income housing or other public facilit:es)
have also received insufficient attention at the fedzral level
and should be encouraged under the YES Act.

Building the Foundation for a Youth Employment System

It is clear that we need to create stronger 1incentives for
serving severely disadvantaged youths. Unéer JTPA, local
communities frequently spend their limited federal funds to serve
young people with fewer barriers to employment, thereby ensuring
that they meet ‘he program's ambitious per formance standards.
Those communities which attempt to help harder-to-serve youths do
So at their own risk, tacing the possibility of sanctions if they
fail and reaping no financial rewards for success.

S. 1731 represents a first step toward incentives to reach
those young people who are now beinc left behind. With JrPAa
programs currently reaching only about 5 percent of the eligible
youth and adult population, and the Job Corps serving just
3 percent of the nation's unemployed teenagers, additional
federal investments for youth employment and trainiag efforts are
essential. The YES Act will ensure that increased funding is
carefully targeted on those most in need oI assistance, and its
demonstration projects will chart a course for future
improvements in broader federal employment and training programs.

At the same time, however, we also need to begin building a
foundation for a more stable and effective youth employment
system. In many ways, America currently has nc youth employment
System-=we have a collection of federal pPrograms and an ever-
changing array of local service providers, but no framework for
investing in che knowledge and czpacity of institutions which are
attempting to meet the employment and training needs of our
nation's young people. Without sustained efforts to learn from
past experience, it is impossible to expect states or local
communities tu serve the most disadvantaged youths and tackle
their tgughest problems effectively.

COF Lelieves that the place to start bolstering the capacity
and effectiveness of current ycuth programs is by strengthening
their ability to teach basic academic sk111s. Everyone
acknowledges that basic skilis play a critical rcle in shaping
the futures of our young people, and yet the federal government
makes virtually no investment in the quality of educational .,
programs serving youths in out-of-school settings, We seem to
assume that tocal ycuth-serving agencies--whether their expertise
is in vocational training, crisis intervention, recreation or
counsellirg--will recognize that basic skills are inportant and
somehow provide high-quality education services. Mcre often,
they are either unable to respond to the need or manage to laynch
only the most rudimentar programs with limited success.
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To enhance our young people's basic skills in out-of-school
settings, CDF has proposed a series of federal investments
designed to stimulate the establishment of community learning
centers throughout the nation. Uader our proposal, targeted
federal grants would support the creation of new and more diverse
educational opposrtunities for poor and minority youths, and
state-administered revolving loan funds would be usc? ‘o help
finance the acquisition of curricula and other learniny materials
of demonstrated effectiveness. A commuuity learning center
initiative would greatly enhance the capacity of youth employment
and training programs to meet the remedial education needs of
severely disadvantaged youths. Therefore, CDF urges the
Committee to authorize grant and loan funds for these purposes as
part of its consideration of S. 1731.

The Committee should also examine Several other steps which
would improve the effectiveness of current youth employment
efforts by utilizing the knowledge we already have from recent
research and program evaluations. For example, CDF believes that
a modest investment in federal incentive grants to local
communities could stimuiate greater use of model programs within
the JTPA system, and we recommend tha® a national panel of
experts be assembled to establish clear : ..terza for the
selection of such proven or promising ap,toaches. We should also
explore ways of building upon the sucTesses of the Job Corps,
both by expanding federal support for this cost-effective program
and by linking existing Job Corps ceaters with new or developing
nonresidential programs Serving severely disadvantaged youths.
Finally, CDF urges the Committee to respond to growing evidence
of the importance of learning during the summer months by
strengthening the remedial education component of the federal
Summer Youth Employment Program, targeting additional funds to
local communities which provide educational services for all
participants with basic skills below grade level.

in closing, I would Stress that there is much work to be
done, but there are also exciting new opportunities for progress
if we invest our resources wisely. CDF views S. 1731 as an
excellent starting point for a long-overdue response to the
problems facing our most disadvantaged young people. We commend
Senators Metzenbaum anéd Specter for their efforts to develop and
improve the YES Act, and we look forward to working closely with
the Committee in bringing a strons bill to the Senate floor at
the 2arliest possible date. Thank You.
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Room 1111
Nationa! 1501
Youth Employment New York, NY 10036
wdition (212) 840-1801
L -y
Washington Otfice
(202) 484-0103

February 1, 1983

The Honorable Howard M. Metzenbaum
Chalrman

Subcomm! ttee on Labor

Unlted States Senate

428 Dirksen Senate Offlce Bullding
Washlington, D.C. 20510

Dear Senator Metzenbaum:

The undersigned members of the Natlonal Youth Employment
Coalltlon urge Immedlate Senate conslderatlon of S. 1731,
the Youth Employment Services (YES) Act of 1987, Introduced
by you and Senator Specter. The Coalltlon commends you for
your leadershlp and dillgence on behalf of Amerlca’s
disadvantaged young people.

The modest federal Investments called for under the YES Act
will yleld substantlal returns by reduclng Joblessress,
Increasing preductlvity, expanding the federa! tax base, and
Improving the prospects for the formatlon ot stable young
famllles. S. 1731 also wlll stretch llmited federal funds
by leveraging prlvate sector Involvement In Job trainlng
efforts for seaverly dlsadvantaged teenagers and young
Adults, licluding essentlal lob commltments for partliclpants
who complete the program.

The YES Act wlll establlish 75-100 publlic/private
partnershlps taroughout the country to provide remedlal
educatlon, vocatlonal tralnlng, and Job placement for
low-1ncome youths lackling minlmal reading and math skills, a
high +ichoo! dlploma, or recent work experlence. Thls
approach bullds on the lessons of past research: |t places
heavy emphasis on the acqulslition of strong baslic academlc
skills; It seeks to ensure that speclflc occupatlonal
preparatlion Is tled to local labor market needs; 1t promotes
cost-effective Interventlons by targeting those most In
need; and 1t provides clear rewards and Incentlves for
Success, S. 1731 also recognizes the valuable role that
communlty-based organlzatlons can play In the development of
effectlve programs for severely dlsadvantaged youths by
requlring that CBOs be full partners In at lcast 25 percent
of the demonstr<utlons,

The YES Act alone wil} not solve America‘’s youth employment
problem. However, S. 1731 addresses one of the major
shurtcomings of current programs funded through the Job
Tralnlng Partnership Act by assistling poor, chronlcally
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unemployed youths who lack basic academic and work skills
and are rarely served as part of current JTPA initlatives.
Enactment of S. 1731 in the 100th Congress will move us a
step closer to the goal of a tralned and productlive work
force for the 21st century, whlle at the same time
rekindiing the hopes and recapturin? the contributicns of
thousands of young Americans now shut out of a rapidly
changing labor market. We belleve the nation can afford to
do no less, and we urge prompt Senate action on this
long~overdue response to the persistent employment barriers
facing the nation’s nost disadvantaged young people.

Sincerely,

Chlldren’s Defense Fund

National Councli) of La Raza

National Urban League

OICs of America

70001 Tralning and Employment Institute

Amer ican Youth Work Center

Child Wel fare League of Amerlica

Federation Employment and Guldance Service

Forum Ior Forecasting

Giris Clubs of America

Jobs for Bay State Graduates

Jrbs for the Future

< 28 for Youth - Boston

« b8 for Youth - Chicago

Jobs for Youth - New York

Joint Actlon in Community Service

Los Angeles Reglonal Coalltion of Service Providers

Natlional Commlttee for Full Employment

National Network of Qunaway and Youth Services

National Puerto Rican Morum

New England Community iction Assoclatlon

United Nelghborhood Centers of America

U ah Youth Employment Coalition

Vocatlional Fourdatlon, Inc

Y.M.C.A. of the U.S.A.

Youth Network Councl) of Chicagu/Illinols
Collaboretion on Youth

Youth Service America

Do
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Room 1111
Nationsl 1501 Broadway
Youth Employment New York, NY 10036
Coalition (212) 8401801
- - |

Washangton Otfice

{202) 484-0103

'- Posltion Statement In Suport of

™0

The undersigned members of the Natlonal Youth Employment
Coalition urge immediate Senate conslideration of S. 1731,
the Youth Employment Services (YES) Act of 1987, introduced
by Senator Metzenbaum (D-Ohlo> and Senator Specter
(R-Pennsylvania),

The modest feder.. Investments called for under the YES Act
will yleld substantial returns by reducing Jo'*lessness,
increasing productivity, expanding the federal tax base, aua
improving the prospects for the formation of stable young
families. S. 1731 also will stretch limlited federal funds
by l=zveraging, private sector Involvement In job tralning
efforts for severly disadvaniaged teenagers ana young
adults, Including essential Job commitments for participants
who complete the program.

The YES Act will establ!sh 75-100 public/private
partnerships throughout the country to provide remedial
education, vocational ‘training, and Job placement for
low-income youths lacking minimal reading and math skills, a
high school diploma, or recent work experisnce. This
approach bullds on the lessons of past research: 1t places
heavy emphasis on the acquisition of strcong basic academic
skills; 1t seeks to ensure that speciflc occupational
preparation is tied to local labor market needs; it promotes
cost-effective Interventions by targeting those most Iin
need; and 1t provides clear rewards and incentives for
success. S. 1731 also recognizes the valuable role that
comunity-based organizations can play in the development of
effectlve programs for severely dlsadvantaged youths by
requirlng that CBOS be full partners in at least 25 percent
of the denonstrations.

The YES Act alone will not solve America’s youth employment
problem, However, S. 1731 addresses one of the major
shortcomings of current programe funded through the Job
Training Partnership Act by assisting poor, chronically
unemployed youths who lack basic academic and wor' skills
and are rarely served as part of current JTPA !~ atives.
Enactment of S. 1731 in the 100th Congress w . ¢€ US a
step cloger to the goal of a tralned and productive work
force for the 21st century, while at the same time
rekindling the hopes and recapturing the contributions of
thousands of young Americans now shut out of a rapidly
changing labor market. We belleve the natlon can afford to
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do no less, and we urge prompt Senate actlon on this
long-cverdue response to the persistent employment barrlers
facing the nation s most disadvantaged young people.

Chlldren’s Defense Fund

Natlonzl Councl! of La Raza

Natlonal Urban League

0OICs of Amerlca

70001 Tralning and Employment Institute

American Youth Work Center

Chlid Welfare League of America

Federatlon Employment and Guldance Service

Fory~ for Forecasting

Girls Clubs of America

Jobs for Bay State Graduates

Jobs for the Future

Jobs for Youth - F 3ton

Jobs for Youth - Chlcago

Jobs for Youth - New York

Joint Actlion In Communlty Service

Los Angeles Reglonal Coalltlon of Service Providers

Natlonal Committee for Full Employment

Natlonal Network of Run:vay and Youth Services

Hatlonal Puerto Rlican Fo,um

New England Commenity Act »n Assoclation

Unlted Nelghbarhood Centers of America

Utah Youth Employment Coalitlon

Vocational Foundatlon, Inc.

Y.M.C.A. of the U,S.A.

Youtk Netwurk Council of Chicago Illinois
Collaboratlon on Youth

Youth Service America

O
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Senator MikuLski. We would now like tc turn to Mr. Wenzler,
Vice President Corporate Staff at Johnson & Johnson, and Chair.
man of the Greater Raritan Private 1.adustry Council, representing
the New Jersey counties of Middlesex, Somerset and Hunt :rdon.

Mr. WENzLER. Good morning, Madam Chairman, Senator Metz-
enbaum.

I very much appreciate the opportunity to a pear before you
today and comment on S. 1731. We at Johnson §, Johnson would
like to join those who have preceded us in appearing before this
Committee and expressing our concern over the plight of severely
disadvantaged young people.

In human terms, the loss of self-esteem and dignity suffered by
these youth is intolerable in a country with our system of values
and traditions. In economic terms, it represents a tragic waste of
talent at a time when the growth of the labor market is slowing,
and the demands of business and industry for skilied and willing
workers is ising yearly.

It is for this reason that the initiatives of S. 1751 are particularly
timely and valuable. We need to demonstrate in a convincing fash-
ion that we have the knowledge and capacity to provide those serv-
ices and opportunities to disadvantaged young pcople that will, in a
cost-effective manner, help them move into a lifetie of employ-
ment.

Evaluations of prior efforts suggest that the tools to do the job
are available but that we have much to ' arn about how to use
those tools. The demonstrations developed under this kind of legis-
lation can play an important role in helping to define the mix and
intensity of services required and the delivery systems best suited
to achieve our goals at a cost that is within .e Nation's ability to
bear.

If it can be responsibly demonstrated that we do know how to
make a positive contribution to the employability of severely disad-
vantaged young people, it will enable us to garner the support of
the Congress and the American people needed to launch a major
attack on youth unemployment.

The testimony you heard last year from Mr. James Hyman of
the Manpower Demonstration Research Corporation dealt with on-
going efforts to determine the effectiveness of various approaches
to helping disadvantaged young people become job-ready. It is im-
portant that programs funded under S. 1731 be required to contrib-
ute in some fashion to the developing body of knowledge that
MDRC and others are cataloguing. '

S. 1731 also is aimed at demonstration of t} - ability and capacity
of the business community to be a significa. partner with public
agencies in providing services to disadvantageu youth.

Legislation calling for , articipation of partnerships involving pri-
vate companies or associations needs to be very clear about what
roles the private organiz.tions are expected to play. Roles which
are not clearly defined are difficult to evaluate, and their demon-
stration value therefore becomes marginal.

The Committee may wish to review the capacities in which pri-
vate organizations have served and highlight those which should
receive priority in the demonstration projects.
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In New Jersey, the State has recerily developed an employment
policy which hopes to coordinate all programs that have employ-
ment and training activities. Its ultimate goal is to have local Pri-
vate Industrv Councils serve as local planning boards for all
human résources programs.

As the chair of a local Private Industry Council—and incidental-
ly, that is a three-county-wide coureil that I chair—I believe this
will enhance our ability to provide more support and coordination
of activities to the unemployed.

I recommend that this legislation maintain the Private Industry
Council as the centerpiece for planning employment training in the
cominunity. I would hope that the outcome of the proposed demon-
strations woula show ways to expand and enhance the public/pri-
vate partnersuip that already exists.

This leads me to my final point on strengthening the demonstra-
tion value of this legislation. It is of vital importance in my mind,
as S. 1731 points out that our program efforts be disciplined to op-
erate on a cost-effective basis. There has been a tendency over the
years to assume that programs to help severely disadvantaged
youth succeed or fail only because of their conceptual design. There
is an additional factor, however, which is of equal importance in
my experience, and that is that the competence with which the
program is operated is absolutely fundamental. This frequently
overlocked factor is arguable the cause of more disappointing re-
sults in programs to aid the disadvantaged than flaws in conceptu-
al design.

There is also a learning curve associated with program oper-
ation. One cannot assume that the cost or outcome of the first
year’s operation will necegsarily refl: ct subsequent perf.rmance.

A program requiring new funds rzeds to be more than a worthy
effort. It needs to be one generally viewed as taking precedence
ﬁver other worthy demands for public resources, as you so well

now.

I believe that the goals of S. 1731 are important to warrant fund-
ing a demonstration program which may lead to a better under-
standing of how to help severeiy disadvantaged youth overcome
their employment handicaps.

I am convinced, however, that as S. 1731 is currently structured,
there will be an understandable temptation to use program re-
sources without concern over the demonstration value of the
project.

The plight of our severely disadvantaged youth is too acute for
both humanitarian and economic reasons for it to continue ignored
and unattended. I commend Senator Metzenbaum, the Subcommit-
tee, Madam Chair, the other sponsors of the bill and the Members
of the entire Committee for their attention to this legislation.

Thank you very much.

Senator MikuLskl. Thank you, Mr. Wenzler, for a fast-paced but
most comprehensive testimony. We are going to be coming back to
you.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Wenzler follows:]
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Testinony of
0. F. WENZLER
Vice President, Corporate Staff
JOHNSON & JOHNSON J
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Chairman
Greater Raritan Private Industry Councif, Inc.
New Brunswick, New Jersey
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Subcommittee on Employment and Productivity
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Mr. Chairman, members of the Committee, my name is